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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Industrial Securities International Financial Group Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Financial Highlights

RESULTS
As at 31 December

2016 2015 Change

HK$ HK$ %
Commission and fee income from brokerage services (note a) 105,344,793 175,164,396 -39.9%
Interest income from loans and financing services 223,919,007 127,030,188 76.3%
Commission and advisory fee from investment banking services 20,995,911 25,615,792 -18.0%
Management fee and advisory fee from asset management services 9,303,771 7,068,319 31.6%
Proprietary trading income 147,736,631 29,445,473 401.7%
Revenue 507,300,113 364,324,168 39.2%
Profit for the year 101,119,554 50,504,033 100.2%
Per share
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) (note b) 4.20 9.91 -57.6%
Dividend per share (HK cents) 2 - Not applicable
Net assets per share (note c) 1.0736 0.9762 10.0%
Notes:
a. Such services include securities, futures and options, and insurance brokerage services.
b. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares.
C Net assets per share is calculated by dividing the net assets at the end of the year by the number of shares in issue as at the end
of the year.
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FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2016 2015 Change
HK$ HK$ %

Total assets 13,398,147,405 4,916,439,425 172.5%

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 4,294,324,801 497,255,985 763.6%

Number of issued shares 4,000,000,000 509,383,471 685.3%

Net profit margin 19.9% 13.9% 43.2%

Return on equity (note 1) 3.8% 10.9% -65.1%

Return on total assets 0.8% 1.0% -20.0%

Gearing ratio (note 2) 100.6% 485.9% -79.3%

Net debt to equity ratio (note 3) 77.9% 438.0% -82.2%

Notes:

1. Return on equity is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The weighted average equity attributable to owners of the Company for 2016 was HK$2,675,973,726 (2015:
HK$462,075,268).

2. Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total bank and other borrowings as at the end of the year by the equity attributable
to owners of the Company as at the end of the year.

3. Net debt to equity ratio is calculated by dividing the total bank and other borrowings less cash and cash equivalents as at the

end of the year by the equity attributable to owners of the Company as at the end of the year.

Revenue Profit for the year
(HK$’000) (HK$’000)

2016 (T 507,200 2016 (T 101,120

2015 [ 364,324 2015 T 50,504
2014 Y 120,002 2014 Y 18,771
Total assets Equity attributable to owners of the Company
(HK$°000) (HK$°000)

2016 (T 13398147 2016 (I 4,204,325
2015 (T 916,439 2015 Y 497,256

2014 Y 2,137,433 2014 @ 420,678
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Chairman’s Statement

| am pleased to report to the shareholders that the Group delivered outstanding operating results for the financial year of 2016,
and accomplished remarkable growth as compared with 2015. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s operating revenue for
the year was HK$507 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 39.2%, and its profit after taxation was HK$101 million,
representing a substantial year-on-year growth of 100.2%.

ECONOMIC AND MARKET REVIEW

Looking back on 2016, global economy remained weak due to a series of “Black Swan” events, such as the Brexit referendum
and the United State election, as well as rising trade protectionism. While growth of emerging markets slowed down, the
developed economy of the United States continued to grow and was close to achieve full employment. At the same time,
European and Japanese economies were still in the doldrums.

The year 2016 also marked the beginning of China’s “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan”. Against the backdrop of complex and ever-
changing surrounding environment and significantly increasing uncertainties, China maintained steady economic development
and became an important growth driver for the Asia Pacific region and the world. In 2016, China’s gross domestic product
(GDP) recorded a year-on-year increase of 6.7%, signalling that the country’s economy has entered a new normal stage, where
it shifted to a slower pace of growth driven by new momentum and structure optimisation.

Despite softer economic growth, with 126 new listings raising IPO proceeds of HK$194.8 billion (USD25.1 billion) in 2016,
Hong Kong remained one of the world’s most active IPO markets and the number one fundraising centre in the world for the
second straight year. During the first half of 2016, Hong Kong's stock market was clouded by weak fundamentals and volatility
of the Hang Seng Index. As market sentiment gradually improved during the next six months, supported by the Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect, daily transaction amount picked up steadily. Nonetheless, the overall market performed not as satisfactory
as last year in terms of financing and transaction amount.

Following the reorganization and capital injection, on 20 October 2016, China Industrial Securities International Financial
Group Limited (“CISI") was successfully listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
became the first overseas spun-off and listed subsidiary of a PRC securities group. The net proceeds from listing amounted to
HK$1,288.2 million, which was exceptionally high for recent GEM board listings in Hong Kong.

Taking the opportunity of this initial public offering, the launch of “Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect” and short-term
recovery of Hong Kong market in the second half of 2016, CISI actively promoted offshore assets allocation and expanded
customer base so as to pave way for the rapid development of its cross-border businesses and growth of assets under
management. As of 31 December 2016, total market value of all securities held by the Group’s brokerage clients exceeded
HK$80 billion.

CISI also saw a rapid growth in operating results in 2016. The Group’s total assets were HK$13,398.1 million and net assets
were HK$4,294.3 million. It recorded operating revenue for the year of HK$507.3 million, representing a year-on-year growth
of 39.2%, and total profit of HK$101.1 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 100.2%.

In terms of revenue structure, the Group leveraged on the increase in capital to optimise its business structure, steadily develop
all business lines and diversify the revenue structure. As the margin financing business expanded rapidly and investment
to the new fixed-income business experienced fast growth, revenue contributed by these two businesses accounted for
increasing percentage of total revenue. At the same time, our corporate finance service business consolidated. In 2016, the
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Group submitted four IPO applications to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, of which two (including the listing of Group) were
completed during the year, and speeded up the expansion of our team dedicated to the debt capital market business, and
initialed the issue of relevant fixed income products.

Our success relies on our professional team and we are dedicated to “Focus on Value, Create the Future with Wisdom”. In view
of the unprecedented opportunities emerged as China quickened the pace to open up the capital market and encouraged local
enterprises to “go global”, we aim at recruiting and nurturing employees from different cultural backgrounds and transforming
them to be the backbone of our cross-border and cross-market development.

PROSPECTS

The future is full of challenges and opportunities. Despite slight improvement in the global economy expected for 2017, one
shall not overlook the downside risks due to political and economic uncertainties in Europe and the United States and the
potential volatility that follows, as well as the retreat from globalization, rising pressure from protectionism, persisting debt
problems in developed economies and geopolitical factors. The Group will adopt a prudent approach to manage and control
such risks.

In 2017, China’s “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan” will enter an important stage of deepening supply-side structural reform. The
country’s economy showed signs of stabilising in 2016, nonetheless, it still faces complex and challenging internal and external
environment. Thus, China will continue to push forward production capacity and inventory reduction as well as deleveraging,
while maintaining stable liquidity conditions to prevent financial risks.

China will also promote high level two-way opening up and strive to achieve mutual benefits. At the same time as it opens up
to foreign investment, it encourages local enterprises to go global and enhances external investment. It is expected that in the
next five years, the country’s inbound investment and outbound investment will total to USD600 billion and USD750 billion
respectively (source: World Economic Forum 2017).

Meanwhile, China will continue to develop the “Belt and Road” initiative in terms of depth with the strong support from
financial intermediation. Leveraging its prime location, Hong Kong will give full play to its role as an international financial
centre and global RMB offshore centre and serve as a distinctive investment and financing platform.

CISI will grasp the excellent opportunities in national strategy and policy as it capitalises on its business presence in Hong
Kong to connect China and the world. It will focus on providing customer-oriented services, and target wealthy individuals,
corporates and financial institution to expand customer base. During which, it will truly form a cross-border and cross-market
network for balanced development.

In the coming year, through concerted team efforts and dedication, we will provide comprehensive, diverse and customised
financial services to customers. We will also further consolidate our strengths to forge and enhance core competitiveness in

pursuit of more effective value creation for customers and shareholders.

Lan Rong
Chairman

24 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS AND OVERVIEW

We are pleased to present the outstanding results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Group recorded an
operating revenue for the year of HK$507.3 million (2015: HK$364.3 million), representing a year-on-year growth of 39.2%,
and profit after tax of HK$101.1 million (2015: HK$50.5 million), representing a year-on-year growth of 100.2%.

Our success was attributable to the remarkable performance of the loans and financing business and proprietary trading
business, which recorded growth in operating revenue of 76.3% and 401.7% respectively for the year ended 31 December
2016.

In 2016, the Group was successfully listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and became the
first overseas spun-off and listed subsidiary of a PRC securities Group, marking a major step in going global. We made full use
of our own capital strengths and the opportunities in the capital market to achieve rapid growth in 2016.

ANALYSIS ON PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES
(I)  Policy review

In 2016, Hong Kong's financial sector continued to be supported by China’s policy. The “Outline of the Thirteenth
Five-Year Plan for the National Economic and Social Development of the People’'s Republic of China” proposed to
consolidate and enhance Hong Kong's position as an international financial centre, strengthen its roles as a global
offshore RMB business hub and international asset management centre, promote high-end and high value-added
financing services and deepen the cooperation between the financial markets of China and Hong Kong so as to speed
up the establishment of mutual access mechanisms.

The launch of “Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect” in the year further promoted the two-way access between the
markets of China and Hong Kong and allowed investors to invest on Chinese stocks through the diverse channels of
Hong Kong. (This has reinforced Hong Kong'’s position as an international financial centre.)

Hong Kong is the largest and most efficient offshore RMB business centre in the world. At the same time, it enjoys
the unique advantage of being a transport hub in the Asia Pacific region and for countries along the “Belt and Road”
initiative. Hence, as China implements the initiative, it brings opportunity for the future development of Hong Kong
in the long run. In July 2016, the Hong Kong Monetary Authority established the Infrastructure Financing Facilitation
Office to promote development of Hong Kong as a regional infrastructure investment and financing hub.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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(1)

Market review

Global economy was under a complicated and ever-changing environment in 2016. In the first half of the year, Hong
Kong's economy experienced a slower growth as a result of the challenging global economy. The real GDP recorded a
year-on-year growth of 1.2% in the first half of 2016.

For the next six months, the global economy faced slightly less downward risks and economic activities began to
stabilise. While the economic growth in the United States gradually recovered, Chinese economy maintained steady
growth, providing support to Hong Kong. Investor sentiment saw improvement in Hong Kong, hence overall investment
witnessed a significant rebound. Hong Kong's economic growth rate increased from only 1% for the first quarter to
3.1% for the fourth quarter, representing a moderate growth of 1.9% for the full year.

The securities market of Hong Kong was vulnerable to the volatility in the international market. Its overall performance
in 2016 was not as robust as in 2015. At the end of 2016, the Hang Seng Index closed at 22,001, representing a slight
increase of 0.4% as compared to 21,914 at the end of 2015. Meanwhile, Hang Seng China Enterprises Index was down
2.8%. Market activities also declined as the average daily transaction volume decreased by 36.64% from HK$105.6
billion in 2015 to HK$66.9 billion in 2016. Number of ETFs dropped to 127 at the end of 2016 from 133 at the end of
2015. In 2016, the average daily transaction volume of ETFs amounted to HK$4.1 billion, down 53.41% from HK$8.8
billion in 2015.

As to the Mainland market, the Shanghai SSE Index and Shenzhen SSE Composite Index dropped 12.3% and 14.7%
respectively in 2016. At the beginning of the year, the market experienced a downturn due to investors’ concern over
the economic outlooks and uncertainties in RMB exchange rate movements. Driven by anticipation of state-owned
enterprises reform, the stock market later rebounded until adjustment as a result of stricter state regulations on stock
trading by insurance funds towards the end of 2016.

As to the overseas market, Dow Jones Index, S & P 500 Index and Nasdaq Index went up by 13.4%, 9.5% and 7.5%
respectively in 2016. FTSE UK Index increased by 14.4%. Nikkei 225 grew by 0.4%, making 2016 the fifth consecutive
year to record growth.

Competitive environment

As of the end of December 2016, the market capitalisation of Hong Kong's securities market amounted to HK$24.7613
trillion (USD3.1932 trillion) and ranked the eighth in the world and the fourth in Asia. With such a large number of
market participants, competition in Hong Kong's securities market was intense. As of December 2016, 501 licensed
corporations were Stock Exchange Participants and 111 licensed corporations were Futures Exchange Participants.

The year 2016 saw the listing of the Group as well as an increasing number of PRC-funded securities group on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Driven by the rapid development of mutual access mechanism between markets of Hong
Kong and China, RMB internationalisation and the “Belt and Road” initiative, demand for global assets allocation from
Chinese enterprises, institutions and individuals kept rising, which provided excellent opportunities for PRC-funded
securities group to expand overseas business.
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(IV) Business review

The Group's operating revenue mainly derives from: (i) brokerage services; (i) loans and financing; (iii) investment
banking; (iv) asset management; and (v) proprietary trading. Mainly driven by the robust development of the loans and
financing business, asset management business and proprietary trading business, the operating revenue boosted by
39.2% to HK$507.3 million (2015: HK$364.3 million).

Brokerage

In 2016, the overall securities market of Hong Kong performed less well than in 2015. The average daily transaction
recorded a year-on-year decrease of 36.64%. Affected by the general business climate in the reporting period, the
Group recorded a year-on-year decrease of 39.9% in commission and fee income from brokerage service to HK$105.3
million for 2016 (2015: HK$175.2 million).

Taking the launch of “Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect” as an opportunity, we implemented a series of
promotional activities with a view to diversifying the customer and geographic profile of revenue from the brokerage
business. In the future, we will adopt internet technology for better service quality. The wealth management and private
banking businesses have set off during the reporting period and are expected to create synergy with different business
segments and facilitate expansion of marketing channels.

In December 2015, the Group commenced the wealth management business to cater the needs of mid-to-high end
individual and corporate clients in the Asia Pacific region. The wealth management business offers a variety of financial
and wealth management products, including insurances brokerage services, funds, bonds, pension schemes and
mandatory provident funds. It recorded an operating revenue of HK$2.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
and achieved a breakthrough from zero.

Loans and financing

Supported by increasing clients and assets under management, the loans and financing business maintained steady
growth. In 2016, it recorded a revenue of HK$223.9 million, representing an increase of 76.3% from HK$127.0 million
for 2015.

Investment banking

Due to market sentiment, the overall financing amount in Hong Kong's securities market declined in 2016. Income from
investment banking business of the Group dropped slightly to HK$21.0 million for the year (2015: HK$25.6 million).

As at 31 December 2016, we completed two projects in which we were the sponsor (including the listing of the
Group), submitted applications for two projects in which we were the sponsor and entered into three financial advisory
agreements. During the period, we acted as the underwriter for six IPO projects (including the listing of the Group)
with a total underwriting amount of approximately HK$3,995.4 million, and participated in eighteen placing projects
in the secondary market with a total placing amount of approximately HK$1,486.2 million. In 2016, we speeded up
the expansion of our team dedicated to the debt capital market business, and initialed the issue of relevant fix income
products. We will continue to work with Industrial Securities, the controlling shareholder, in promoting corporate
finance business.

11
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Asset management

Our asset management business recorded a revenue of HK$9.3 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 31.6%
as compared with HK$7.1 million for last year. As at 31 December 2016, the Group's asset under management
(including RMB Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors funds, private funds and discretionary any accounts) amounts to
approximately HK$1,744.9 million.

In 2016, the Group proactively promoted the “alternative investment” strategy by issuing two actively managed HKD
funds. While pursuing expansion of assets under management, we also took initiatives to explore other alternative
investment products. In order to enhance assets under management, we will give full play to our advantages as a PRC-
funded securities company in the cross-border asset management business and establish a two-way investment product
platform for domestic and international institutional and professional investors.

Proprietary trading

During the reporting period, all the proprietary trading of the Group was bond and other fixed income products trading,
which recorded an exciting growth in revenue (including interest income) from HK$29.4 million to HK$147.7 million, up
401.7%.

Majority of our bond and fixed income product portfolio typically comprise investment grade USD debt securities
that deliver stable dividends (i.e., the bond issuers with a BBB— rating or higher by international rating agencies) and
non-investment grade debt securities with higher return potentials and issued by companies which we have in-depth
understanding after applying strict credit selection process.

Financial positions

As at 31 December 2016, the total assets of the Group were HK$13,398.1 million, representing an increase of 172.5%
as compared with that of 2015 (2015: HK$4,916.4 million). As at 31 December 2016, the total liabilities of the Group
were HK$9,103.8 million, representing an increase of 106.0% as compared with that of 2015 (2015: HK$4,419.2
million).

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structures

As at 31 December 2016, the net current assets of the Group increased by 130.9% to HK$1,085.7 million (2015:
HK$470.3 million). As at 31 December 2016, the current ratio of the Group (defined as current assets to current
liabilities as at the end of the respective financial year) remained largely unchanged at 1.1 times (2015: 1.1 times).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the net cash inflows of the Group were HK$734.9 million (2015: HK$34.8
million). As at 31 December 2016, the bank balances of the Group was HK$972.9 million (2015: HK$238.0 million).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank and other borrowings of HK$4,320.1 million (2015: HK$2,416.1
million), representing an increase of 78.8% as compared with 2015. As at 31 December 2016, the gearing ratio of the
Group (defined as bank and other borrowings as at the end of the year divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company as at the end of the year.) decreased by 79.3% to 100.6% (2015: 485.9%).

The capital of the Group comprises only ordinary shares. Total equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to HK$4,294.3 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$497.3 million).



CHINA INDUSTRIAL SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Management Discussion and Analysis

Prospects and future plan

Following the launch of “Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect”, the China’s capital market further connects
with the world. We are optimistic about future business development in view of the opportunities ushered in by
internationalization of China’s capital market. In the year ahead, we will focus on revenue enhancement and revenue
diversity. While we strive to strengthen the securities and futures brokerage business, we also pursue a more diverse
customer base by offering customised and comprehensive services. At the same time, we will continue to develop
the bonds investment and trading business and keep risks under control; accelerate the development of the asset
management business; promote the corporate finance and institutional sales business; commence the private equity
investments and structured finance businesses.

Use of proceeds

On 20 October 2016, the Group listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. A total of
1,000,000,000 shares were offered under the global offering at an offer price of HK$1.33 per share. The net proceeds
(net of issuance expenses) amounted to HK$1,288.2 million.

As disclosed in the prospectus, approximately 40% of the net proceeds from listing would be used for expansion of the
loans and financing business; approximately 20% would be used for development of the proprietary trading business,
primarily for investment in fixed-income assets; approximately 10% would be used for development of the new capital-
based intermediary business; approximately 8% would be used for development of the asset management business;
approximately 8% would be used for development of the investment banking business; approximately 4% would be
used for development of the institutional sales capabilities, including hiring experienced sales personnel; the remaining
amount, or approximately 10% would be used for working capital and other general corporate purposes.

As at 31 December 2016, 34%, or HK$440 million of the proceeds from listing were used for expansion of the loans
and financing business; 10% or HK$129 million were used for business operation; 19% or HK$250 million were used
for development of proprietary trading business; 37% or HK$469 million were bank deposits. The Group will apply the
proceeds to various businesses gradually as planned in accordance with the requirements set out in the prospectus.
Significant acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies

There were no significant acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Charges on Group assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s asset pledged are mainly debt securities pledged as collaterals for other
borrowings or for margin loans from brokers. Details are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statement.
Commitments under operating lease

Details of commitments under operating lease of the Group are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

13
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Employee information

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 134 full-time employees (31 December 2015: 125 full-time employees),
including the Directors. Total remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$129.4 million (2015:
HK$100 million). Such increase was mainly attributable to the growth in staff salaries and bonus due to adjustment of
workforce structure and increase in number of employees.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any material contingent liability as at 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report.

Event after the reporting period

After the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company recommended a final dividend of HK$0.02 per
share. Further details are set out in the Report of the Board of Directors.

Risk management

The Group has in place the risk management structure and implemented the compliance and operational manuals,
which contain credit policies, operating procedures and other internal control measures for control of exposure to
credit, liquidity, market and operational risks during the course of business activities.

Credit risks

The Group has established the risk management committee responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
implementation of risk management policies for principal business units, identifying risks, approving trading limit and
credit limit, and updating the risk management policies in response to changes;

We have implemented “know-your-client” procedures and credit check to ascertain the background of potential clients.
We also perform credit assessment on potential clients especially in our loans and financing business, and require
futures brokerage clients and loans and financing clients to provide margin deposit or acceptable collateral (as the case
may be) to minimise exposure;

The Group closely monitors the margin ratio and loan-to-value ratio of the loans and financing clients and takes
appropriate action to recover or minimise loss where it foresees that the client may default in his or her obligation;

The senior management and head of business units of the Group regularly review the balance sheet, profit and loss
accounts and credit granted to clients to identify the risk exposure of the Group, especially during adverse market
movements; and

We have established credit policy with respect to the trading limit, credit line and credit period granted to brokerage
and loans and financing clients, and we review and revise such policy on an ongoing basis; we conduct regular review in
respect of outstanding margin loans to assess exposure to credit risks.
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Liquidity risks

The Group has in place liquidity risk management system to identify, measure, monitor and control potential liquidity
risk and to maintain our liquidity and financial resources requirements as specified under applicable laws and
regulations, such as Financial Resources Rules;

The Group has established a multi-tiers authorisation mechanism and internal policies for the management and approval
of the use and allocation of capital. We have authorisation limits in place for any commitment or fund outlay, such as
procurement, investments, loans, etc., and we assess the impact of those transactions on the capital level;

The Group meets its funding requirements primarily through bank borrowings from multiple banks. We have also
adopted stringent liquidity management measures to ensure we satisfy capital requirements under the applicable laws;
and

We have established limits and controls on margin loans and money lending loans on aggregate and individual loan
basis.

Market risks

The Group has established policy and procedures to monitor and control the price risk in the ordinary and usual course
of business;

Our staff with professional qualification and industry experience in the business units discusses and evaluates the
underlying market risks prior to engaging in any such new transaction or launching of any such new business;

The Group reviews market risk limits for certain business lines such as the asset management and proprietary trading
business to manage risk and periodically review and adjust our market strategies in response to changes in the business
performance, risk tolerance levels and variations in market conditions;

In terms of the proprietary trading business, The Group formulates different selection criteria for bonds and other fixed
income products, limit the investment in industries and enterprises with excess capacity and negative news, and track
and monitor the trends of macro economy and investment concentration ratio to optimise our investment strategies; we
diversify the fixed income investment portfolios, limit the size of investment in relation to any single product, client or
type of investment and continually track the changes on the operation, credit rating and solvency of the issuers; and

The Group also assesses the spread level, relative investment values, relative yield, shape of yield curve, major risks,
degree of liquidity and capability of revenue generation of different types of bonds and control the investment horizon
of debt securities investment; the Group monitors investments on a timely basis, including trading positions, unrealised
profit or loss, risk exposure and trading activities and establish mechanisms that set pre-determined points to stop profit
or loss on an overall basis or on each individual stock.
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Foreign currency risks

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risks is primarily related to transactions denominated in a currency other
than Hong Kong dollars. The proprietary trading business primarily comprises bond and other fixed income product
investment denominated in US dollars. The Group does not expect significant foreign exchange risk arising from USD
denominated monetary items in view of the HKD pegged system to the USD.

Interest rate risks

The interest rate risks of the Group mainly come from fixed-rate loans receivable and fixed-rate debt securities. For debt
securities included in financial assets, the fair value measurement is subject to market interest rate. The Group currently
has no fair value hedge policy in place.

The Group may also expose to cash flow interest rate risks primarily arising from bank balances, secured margin loans
and bank borrowings which carry interest at prevailing market interest rates;

The management of the Group closely monitors exposure related to interest rate risks and ensures it is maintained at
an acceptable level. The Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate risks is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and London Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s financial instruments
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.

Operational risks

The Group has responsible officers in charge of overseeing the day-to-day operations, controlling and monitoring
compliance issues and solving dealing problems; they also formulate and update the operational manual for each
business function based on regulatory and industrial requirements to standardise our operational procedures and reduce
human errors;

The Group sets authorisation hierarchy and procedures for its daily operations, and has surveillance systems to monitor
the trading activities of our business units and staff on a real-time basis.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lan Rong (“Mr. Lan”), aged 56, was appointed as a non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board on 1 June
2016. He was appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and a member of remuneration
committee of the Board on 30 September 2016. As chairman of the Board, he is responsible for the strategic development of
the businesses of our Group.

Mr. Lan has over 25 years of experience in the financial services industry. From April 1994 to November 1999, Mr. Lan was
the president of Industrial Securities. Since December 1999, Mr. Lan is the chairman of the board of directors of Industrial
Securities, since July 2011, he is the chairman of the board of directors of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings
Limited, and from April 2010 to August 2016, he was the chairman of the board of directors of Industrial Innovation Capital
Management Co. Ltd. (BIE BT EAREEBERAF]) .

He is currently serving as a part-time vice chairman of the Securities Association of China. Mr. Lan was an independent non-
executive director of Jutal Offshore Oil Services Limited ( E &8 F A B RHBBR AT ), an oil and gas company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 03303) from May 2008 to July 2015.

Mr. Lan graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics, the PRC, in July 1983 with a bachelor’s degree in finance.
He further obtained an EMBA degree from the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, the PRC, in April 2007.

Ms. Zhuang Yuanfang (“Ms. Zhuang”), aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 1 June 2016. She was
appointed as a member of audit committee of the Board on 30 September 2016. Ms. Zhuang's primarily responsibilities are to
monitor and supervise the general management, investments and operations of our Group. Ms. Zhuang has over 24 years of
experience in the financial services industry.

Ms. Zhuang joined the transactions department of the Industrial Securities Group in September 1992. From July 1995 to July
1996, Ms. Zhuang successively served as assistant to the general manager and the chief of the transactions department of the
Industrial Securities Group. From July 1996 to August 2004, Ms. Zhuang successively served as the deputy general manager and
general manager of the securities investment department of the Industrial Securities Group. From August 2004 to November
2005, Ms. Zhuang was appointed as the chief investment officer of the Industrial Securities Group and from March 2013 to
August 2016, Ms. Zhuang was appointed as a director of Industrial Innovation Capital Management Co. Ltd ( 1 % 8|57 & K&
BB R A F]) and since December 2005, Ms. Zhuang served as the deputy president of the Industrial Securities Group.

Currently, Ms. Zhuang is also the chairman of the board of directors of Aegon-Industrial Fund Management Co. Ltd. (%2
KESEEHFRAF]), an investment management firm, an executive director of Industrial Securities Investment Management
Co., Ltd (EEFE AR EEE AR A F]), and a director of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited.

Ms. Zhuang obtained a bachelor’s degree in world economics from Fudan University, the PRC, in July 1992, and a postgraduate
master’s degree in business management from Fudan University, the PRC, in July 2001. In September 2008, Ms. Zhuang
completed an EMBA degree at the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, the PRC.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Jinguang (“Mr. Huang”), aged 47, was appointed as a Director on 21 July 2015 and re-designated as an
executive Director on 1 June 2016, and was further appointed as chief executive officer of the Company on 8 June 2016. Mr.
Huang is primarily responsible for the overall management of the operations of our Group, and the day-to-day management of
our Group's businesses and operations. Mr. Huang has over 23 years of experience in the financial services industry.

From November 1992 to January 2001, Mr. Huang successively served as a staff member and the deputy general member of
the Industrial Securities Group's Nanping operations’ division. From January 2001 to November 2001, Mr. Huang served as the
general manager of the Industrial Securities Group’s Chengdu operations’ division. From November 2001 to November 2004,
Mr. Huang successively served as the office manager, and then general manager of operations for the brokerage division of
the Industrial Securities Group. From November 2004 to October 2007, Mr. Huang served concurrently as general manager of
operations for the brokerage division of the Industrial Securities Group and the general manager of the Industrial Securities
Group’s Hangzhou operations’ division. From October 2007 to July 2011, Mr. Huang served successively as, among others,
office manager and general manager of the margin trading division of the Industrial Securities Group.

Since July 2011, Mr. Huang is a director and the chief executive officer of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings
Limited. Currently, Mr. Huang is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Nanyang Technological University, Singapore in May
2010.

Mr. Wang Xiang (“Mr. Wang”), aged 37, was appointed as an executive Director on 1 June 2016 and a deputy chief
executive officer of the Company on 8 June 2016. Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for assisting the chief executive officer
with the overall administration of business operations of our Group, and participating in the day-to-day management of our
Group’s businesses and operations. Mr. Wang has over 8 years of experience in the financial services industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang joined the Industrial Securities Group as a research analyst of its securities investment
department in March 2008. From August 2010 to December 2011, Mr. Wang served as a manager of the securities investment
department of Industrial Securities Group, and from January 2012 to May 2015, Mr. Wang served as the assistant chief
executive officer of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited.

From May 2015 to 5 September 2016, Mr. Wang was the deputy chief executive officer of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong)
Financial Holdings Limited. Currently, Mr. Wang is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in accounting and financial management from the University of Hertfordshire, the United
Kingdom, in March 2006.
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Ms. Zeng Yanxia (“Ms. Zeng”), aged 40, was appointed as an executive Director on 1 June 2016, and was further appointed
as a deputy chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of the Company on 8 June 2016. Ms. Zeng is primarily
responsible for assisting the chief executive officer with the overall management and supervision of the financial aspects of our
Group's operations, and participating in the day-to-day management of our Group's businesses and operations. Ms. Zeng has
approximately 10 years of experience in the financial services industry.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zeng joined the accounting and finance department of the Industrial Securities Group in
October 2006, following which she served successively as a manager of its internal division, assistant to the general manager,
deputy director and deputy general manager. From August 2013 to March 2016, Ms. Zeng served as deputy general manager
of the strategy development department of the Industrial Securities Group, and from March 2016 to 5 September 2016, Ms.
Zeng was the deputy chief executive officer and CFO of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited. Ms. Zeng
is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Zeng graduated from the Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics (as it was then known as) with a bachelor’s
degree in certified public accountancy in June 1998. She further obtained a master’s degree in finance from Wuhan University
in June 2003, and a doctor in accounting from Xiamen University in July 2006. She is also a senior accountant and CPA of the
PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Hong Ying (“Ms. Hong"), aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 27 July 2016. She was
appointed as the chairman of audit committee of the Board on 30 September 2016. Ms. Hong has over 36 years of experience
in the accounting industry. Ms. Hong is also qualified as a fellow certified public accountant and senior accountant in the PRC
and a fellow certified public accountant of CPA Australia, and international associate member of Hong Kong CPA. Currently,
Ms. Hong is the chairlady and legal representative of Beijing Fugin Accountants Limited, a firm engaged in enterprise audit and
accounting and consulting services, which is based in the PRC. Ms. Hong is also the chairlady and legal representative of Beijing
Fugin International Enterprise Management Consulting Limited, and the chairlady of Fortune International (Asia) Limited.

Ms. Hong completed the Finance CEO programme jointly offered by the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, Columbia
Business School and London Business School in January 2009, and obtained a certificate in Executive Management from the
Golden Gate University, the United States in August 1993.
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Ms. Hong was a director of the companies named below. As confirmed by Ms. Hong, as far as she is aware, the dissolution of
these companies has not resulted in any liability or obligation being imposed against her.

Nature of
Place of business before Date of Means of Reasons for
Name of company incorporation  dissolution dissolution dissolution dissolution
Fortune International (Hong Kong) Hong Kong None; inactive since 11 February 2011 Deregistration Cessation of business
Certified Public Accountants incorporation
Limited
BHER (F8) @507
AR AT
Fortune International Certified Public  Hong Kong None; inactive since 11 February 2011 Deregistration Cessation of business
Accountants (Hong Kong) incorporation
Limited

Mr. Tian Li ("Mr. Tian"), aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 27 July 2016. He was
appointed as the chairman of remuneration committee and a member of audit committee and nomination committee of the
Board on 30 September 2016. Mr. Tian has over 16 years of experience in the financial services industry. Mr. Tian is a director
of Shanghai Tuhong Investment Management Company Limited ( F/8 BB &SRB R A]) , a company primarily engaged
in strategic investment, asset management, and the provision of corporate advisory services, and he also currently serves as
the independent board director of the Bank of De Yang and of China Industrial International Trust Limited, respectively. For the
avoidance of doubt, China Industrial International Trust Limited is a subsidiary of Industrial Bank Co. Ltd (L ZRITA M AR A
A]) , which like Industrial Securities, is partially owned by Fujian Provincial Department of Finance (&4 Bf EXEE) . Mr. Tian's
previous experiences include employment with Bank of China International Limited as group executive director and head of
financial institutions from January 2002 to October 2004.

Mr. Tian graduated with a bachelor’s degree in engineering from the People’s Liberation Army University of Science and
Technology (previously known as the People’s Liberation Army Institute of Engineering Corps), the PRC, in July 1990. He then
obtained a master’'s degree in civil engineering from Cleveland State University, the United States, in August 1996, and a
further master’s degree in business administration from Duke University, the United States, in May 1999.

Mr. Tian was a director of the company named below. As confirmed by Mr. Tian, as far as he is aware, the dissolution of this
company has not resulted in any liability or obligation being imposed against him.

Nature of
Place of business before Date of Means of Reasons for
Name of company incorporation  dissolution dissolution dissolution dissolution
Harvest International (HK) Hong Kong None; inactive since 14 March 2014 Striking Off Inactive
Group Limite incorporation

AREBRBRAF
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Mr. Qin Shuo (“Mr. Qin"), aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 27 July 2016. He was
appointed as a member of remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Board. Mr. Qin was the chief editor of
China Business News (85— B4 H#®) , from June 2004 to October 2015. Currently, Mr. Qin is an independent director of
Shenzhen Bosun Institute of Management Science Co. Ltd CRINTEEEER SRR MHD AR AF) , a consulting company
trading on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations system in the PRC.

Mr. Qin graduated with a bachelor’s degree in journalism from Fudan University, the PRC in July 1990, a master's degree in
public administration from California State University (Northridge), the United States, in June 2001 and further obtained his
doctor in business administration from Sun Yat-sen University, the PRC, in June 2009.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 (the "Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally engaged in the provision of brokerage services, loans
and financing services, investment banking, asset management services and proprietary trading.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the sections of Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to
16 of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 59 of this report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 to the

shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 5 June 2017. The final dividend will be
payable on or about 26 June 2017.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 63 to 64 and the note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately
HK$97,000,000.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The revenue attributable to the 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 18% of the Group’s revenue from
external customers for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last three financial years is set out on
page 140 of this report.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Lan Rong (Chairman) (appointed on 1 June 2016)
Ms. Zhuang Yuanfang (appointed on 1 June 2016)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Huang Jinguang (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 21 July 2015)
Mr. Wang Xiang (appointed on 1 June 2016)

Ms. Zeng Yanxia (appointed on 1 June 2016)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Ms. Hong Ying (appointed on 27 July 2016)
Mr. Tian Li (appointed on 27 July 2016)

Mr. Qin Shuo (appointed on 27 July 2016)
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Pursuant to articles 108(a) and (b) of articles of association of the Company, Mr. Lan Rong, Ms. Zhuang Yuanfang, Mr.
Huang Jinguang, Mr. Wang Xiang, Ms. Zeng Yanxia, Ms. Hong Ying, Mr. Tian Li and Mr. Qin Shuo will retire as directors of
the Company by rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM") of the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors

pursuant to the requirement of Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the Company for a term of three years and be thereafter
continuous unless and until the termination by either party thereto giving no less than three months’ prior written notice.

The non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of three years and either party
may terminate such appointment at any time by giving at least three months’ notice in writing to the other.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general meeting. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to their experience, responsibilities, workload and time devoted to the Group and performance of the Group.
Details of the emoluments of Directors are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements of this report.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) held by the Directors and chief executives of the
Company (the “Chief Executives”) which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or have been entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
are as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company
Approximate

Name of Director Capacity/Nature No. of Shares held percentage
Lan Rong Beneficiary of a trust 9,263,389 0.23%
Zhuang Yuanfang Beneficiary of a trust 8,131,197 0.20%
Huang Jinguang Beneficiary of a trust 9,263,389 0.23%
Wang Xiang Beneficiary of a trust 8,131,197 0.20%
Zeng Yanxia Beneficiary of a trust 7,204,858 0.18%

Save as disclosed above, as at the 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or Chief Executive had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which was required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

25



CHINA INDUSTRIAL SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Report of the Board of Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as the Directors and the Chief Executives are aware, as at 31 December 2016, the following persons/corporations (other
than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and the underlying Shares,
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate

No. of percentage of
Name Nature of Interest Shares held Shareholding
China Industrial Securities International Beneficial owner 2,053,281,644 51.33%
Holdings Limited
Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Interest of controlled 2,053,281,644 51.33%
Holdings Limited (Note 1) corporation
Industrial Securities Co., Ltd.* (Note 2) Interest of controlled 2,053,281,644 51.33%
corporation
Harvest Capital Management Co., Ltd (Note 3) Beneficial owner 293,232,000 7.33%
Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Interest in controlled 293,232,000 7.33%
corporation
China Credit Trust Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Interest in controlled 293,232,000 7.33%
corporation
Intelligence Creation International Limited Settlor of a trust 287,988,473 7.20%
(Note 4)
Equity Trustee Limited (Note 5) Trustee 287,988,473 7.20%
Intelligence Creation Value Limited (Note 6) Beneficial owner 287,988,473 7.20%
Hao Kang Financial Holdings (Group) Limited Beneficial owner 205,853,089 5.15%
ApexTrade Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 205,853,089 5.15%
corporation
Chen Jiaquan (Note 7) Interest in controlled 205,853,089 5.15%

corporation

Yang Zhiying (Note 8) Interest of spouse 205,853,089 5.15%
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Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited holds the entire issued share capital of China Industrial Securities
International Holdings Limited. Therefore, Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited is deemed or taken to be

interested in all our Shares held by China Industrial Securities International Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

Industrial Securities Co., Ltd.* holds the entire issued share capital of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings
Limited. Therefore, Industrial Securities Co., Ltd.* is deemed or taken to be interested in all our Shares held by Industrial
Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

China Credit Trust Co., Ltd holds 40% of the entire issued share capital of Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd., and Harvest
Fund Management Co., Ltd. holds 75% of the entire issued share capital of Harvest Capital Management Co., Ltd, Therefore,
China Credit Trust Co., Ltd and Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd. are deemed or taken to be interested in all our Shares held
by Harvest Capital Management Co., Ltd for the purposes of the SFO.

Intelligence Creation International Limited is the settlor of Intelligence Creation Trust.

Equity Trustee Limited holds the entire issued share capital of Intelligence Creation Value Limited as the trustee of the
Intelligence Creation Trust.

Intelligence Creation Value Limited holds the Shares issued and allotted pursuant to the Employee Share Participation which
is the trust assets of the Intelligence Creation Trust. For further details of the Intelligence Creation Trust, please refer to the
paragraph headed “History, Reorganisation and Group Structure — Employee Share Participation Scheme” in the prospectus of
the Company dated 30 September 2016.

Chen Jiaquan holds 70% of the total issued share capital of ApexTrade Holdings Limited and is the sole director of Hao Kang
Financial Holdings (Group) Limited and therefore is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares held by ApexTrade
Holdings Limited and Hao Kang Financial Holdings (Group) Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Yang Zhiying is the spouse of Chen Jiaquan. Under the SFO, Yang Zhiying is deemed, or is taken to be, interested in all the
Shares in which Chen Jiaquan is interested in.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the substantial or significant shareholders of the Company or
other persons, other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests are set out in the section headed
"Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations” above, had any interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

To the best knowledge of the Board, at no time during the Year was the Company, its subsidiaries or its other associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company (including their spouse and
children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or its associated corporations.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed in the section headed “Relationship with the controlling
shareholders” and “Connected transactions” in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 September 2016, none of the
Directors or the controlling shareholders of the Company nor their respective close associates as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules had any interest in business that competed or might compete with business of the Group during the period from the
Listing Date to the date of this report.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER'S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2016, save and except for the compliance adviser’'s agreement entered into between the Company and
Haitong International Capital Limited (the “Compliance Adviser”) dated 8 June 2016, neither the Compliance Adviser, nor any
of its directors, employees or close associates had any interests in the securities of the Company or any other companies of the
Group (including options or rights to subscribe for such securities).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Board is not aware of any contract during the Year entered into with the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Directors of the Company receive compensation in the form of fees, salaries, contributions to pension schemes, other
allowances, other benefits in kind and/or discretionary bonuses with reference to those paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and performance of the Directors, as well as the performance of the Group.

The Group regularly reviews and determines the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors by reference to,
among other things, market level of remuneration and compensation paid by comparable companies, respective responsibilities
of the Directors and performance of the Group.

the Remuneration Committee will review and determine the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors with
reference to their experience, responsibilities, workload and time devoted to the Group and performance of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 27 September 2016, the Company and Industrial Securities Consultancy Service (Shenzhen) Company Limited entered
into a service agreement (the “Service Agreement”) pursuant to which Industrial Securities Consultancy Service (Shenzhen)
Company Limited agreed to provide consultancy services to the Company, including the provision of consultancy service on
economic information, and assisting the Company in collecting and analysing information on macroeconomics, industry news
and market information in the PRC. The major reason for such arrangement is to lower the staff and other operating costs for
the Group. The term of the Service Agreement is for three years from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. The proposed
cap amounts for the provision of abovementioned services by Industrial Securities Consultancy Service (Shenzhen) Company
Limited to the Company is approximately HK$8.2 million, HK$10.2 million and HK$12.1 million for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2018, respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group paid a service fee of HK$4,826,110
to Industrial Securities Consultancy Service (Shenzhen) Company Limited. In deterring the transactions price and terms, the
relevant pricing policy and guideline stated in the prospectus have been complied. China Industrial Securities International
Holdings Limited, as the controlling shareholder of the Company, holds a 51.33% interest of the Company. Industrial Securities
(Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited holds a 100% interest of China Industrial Securities International Holdings Limited.
Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited holds a 100% interest of Industrial Securities Consultancy Service
(Shenzhen) Company Limited. Therefore, Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited is a connected person
to the Company and transactions between the Company and the subsidiaries and/or associates of Industrial Securities (Hong
Kong) Financial Holdings Limited constitute connected transactions of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2016 and confirmed that they have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on
normal commercial terms and according to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company has engaged the Company’s auditor to perform certain procedures in order to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions set out above in accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company confirms that the signing and execution of the specific agreements under the Continuing Connected Transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been subject to the pricing principles of such continuing connected transactions.

The Company confirms that the related party transactions are not classified as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
in relation to the Connected Transactions or the Continuing Connected Transactions, as the case may be, and is in accordance
with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules Disclosure requirements.

Details of the related party transactions during the Year are set out in note 39 to the financial statement.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On 28 September 2016, Industrial Securities Co. Ltd., Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited and China
Industrial Securities International Holdings Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition
(the "Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company (for itself and for the benefit of each member of the Group).
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition, during the period that the Deed of Non-Competition remains effective, each of the
Controlling Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes with the Company (for itself and for the benefit of each
member of the Group) that it shall not, and shall procure its associates or companies controlled by it (other than members
of the Group) not to, directly or indirectly engage, participate in or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business in competition with or likely to be in competition with the existing business activity of any
member of the Group in Hong Kong or any other area in which the Group carries on business, save for the holding of not more
than 5% shareholding interests (individually or with its associates) in any company listed on a recognised stock exchange and at
any time the relevant listed company shall have at least one shareholder (individually or with its associates, if applicable) whose
shareholding interests in the relevant listed company is higher than that of the relevant Controlling Shareholders (individually or
with its associates).

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the Company of their compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition, and the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the

undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied by each of the Controlling Shareholders from the Listing
Date up to the date of this report.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations of approximately HK$50,000.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the transfer books and register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 22 May 2017 to Thursday, 25 May 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no share
transfers can be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the
Company should ensure that all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 May 2017.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016, the transfer books and
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 1 June 2017 to Monday, 5 June 2017, both days inclusive,
during which period no share transfers can be registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
subject to passing of the ordinary resolution number 2 above at the AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 May 2017.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, every Director, or other officer of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, or other officer of the Company. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company during
the Year in respect of any legal liabilities which may be assumed by the Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of
their duties or in relation thereto.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group emphasises the importance of energy conservation and environmental protection as part of its corporate culture
and encourages its employees to minimise the use of paper by promoting digitalisation of documents and better use of waste
paper. The Group has also participated in a carbon reduction program by replacing all traditional fluorescent lamps with
energy-saving lamps within the working area.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the best knowledge of the Directors, there has
been a sufficient public float of the issued Shares as required under the GEM Listing Rules (i.e. at 25% of the issued Shares in
public hands) throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been reviewed by the
audit committee of the Company.

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lan Rong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017

*  For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance in the best interest of the shareholders of the
Company (the”Shareholders”). The Company has been making an effort to enhance the corporate governance standard of the
Company by reference to the code provisions and recommended best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. From the Listing Date to end of the Year, the Company has
applied and complied with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of
the Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs, the Board has
established three Board committees including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of eight Directors including two non-executive Directors, three executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors.

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lan Rong (Chairman)
Ms. Zhuang Yuanfang

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Jinguang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Xiang

Ms. Zeng Yanxia

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Hong Ying

Mr. Tian Li

Mr. Qin Shuo

There was no financial, business, family or other material relationship among the Directors. The biographical details of each of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “biographical details of directors” of this report.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly at least four times each year, and more frequently as the needs of the business demand, to formulate
overall strategy, monitor business development as well as the financial performance of the Group. The Board has delegated
certain duties and authorities to the management for the day-to-day management of the Group’s operation.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notices are given. The agenda together with all relevant meeting materials are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each regular board meetings and at agreed periods for other meetings to enable them to make informed decisions with
adequate information. The Board and each Director also have direct and independent access to the management whenever
necessary.

All minutes of Board meetings and general meetings are kept by the company secretary and are open for inspection at
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director. Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and access to the advice and services of the company secretary. In addition, the Company enables the Directors, in
discharge of their duties, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances.

During the Year, the Directors’ attendance at the Board meeting is set out as follows:

Number of
meetings of
the Board
Name attended/held*
Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lan Rong (Chairman) 11
Ms. Zhuang Yuanfang 11
Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Jinguang (Chief Executive Officer) 11
Mr. Wang Xiang 1Al
Ms. Zeng Yanxia 1Al
Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Hong Ying 17l
Mr. Tian Li 17l
Mr. Qin Shuo 11

* The denominator represents the number of Board meetings held during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code
including:

o develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

o review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;

o review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors; and

o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on
the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Board will review such objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and
the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Company will also take into consideration its own specific needs
from time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Lan Rong is the chairman and Mr. Huang Jinguang is the chief executive officer. There is a clear division of responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive officer in that the chairman bears primary responsibility for the effective
functioning of the Board, ensuring the establishment of business strategies and sound corporate governance practices of the
Group, while the chief executive officer bears executive responsibility for implementing the Board’s approved strategies and
policies and supervising the Group’s day-to-day business operations.
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DIRECTORS' TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company'’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules
and regulations. The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company's performance, position and prospects
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. To assist Directors’ continuing professional
development, the Company recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

During the Year, a record of the training attended/received by each of the Directors, is set out as follows:

Name Type of training
Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lan Rong A &B

Ms. Zhuang Yuanfang A&B

Executive Directors:

Mr. Huang Jinguang A &B
Mr. Wang Xiang A &B
Ms. Zeng Yanxia A &B

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Hong Ying A &B
Mr. Tian Li A&B
Mr. Qin Shuo A&B
Notes:

A attending courses/seminars/conferences

B: reading journals/written training materials/updates

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”) provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election. In addition, at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation and that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years. The non-executive Directors and
each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of three years and subject to retirement by rotation
(at least once every three years) and re-election in accordance with the Articles.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the Company during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emolument of the Directors, chief executive and five individuals with highest emoluments are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company's auditors are set out as
follows:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$
Audit services 1,376,500
Non-audit services 978,700

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules and the code provisions under the CG Code. The Audit Committee currently comprises a non-executive
Director, namely Ms. Zhuang Yuanfang, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Hong Ying and Mr. Tian Li.
The chairlady of the Audit Committee is Ms. Hong Ying.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o to review and supervise financial reporting process;
o to nominate and monitor external auditors; and
o to oversee the risk management and internal control procedures of the Company.
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During the Year, the Group's unaudited condensed consolidated results for the nine months ended 30 September 2016
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that such results have complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the requirements under the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable requirement and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

During the Year, the members’ attendance of the meetings of the Audit Committee is set out as follows:

Number of
meetings of the
Audit Committee

Name attended/held
Ms. Hong Ying (Chairlady) 11
Ms. Zhuang Yuanfang 11
Mr. Tian Li Al

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and the code provisions under the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee currently
comprises one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Lan Rong, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tian Li
and Mr. Qin Shuo. Mr. Tian Li is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

o to make recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors and
senior management of the Company; and

. to ensure that none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has not yet convened any meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and the code provisions under the CG Code. The Nomination Committee currently
comprises one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Lan Rong, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tian Li
and Mr. Qin Shuo. Mr. Lan Rong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:
o to review the structure, size and composition of the Board annually;

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board,;
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o to assess the independence of our independent non-executive Directors; and
o to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to appointments of Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has not yet convened any meeting.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the preparation of the financial statements which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and
standards are selected and applied consistently. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of
the Group. The Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard the interest of the Shareholders and the Group's assets. The Board has delegated to the management the
implementation of the systems of risk management and internal control and review of all relevant financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions within the established framework.

The external auditor has been appointed to carry out a review of the implemented system and procedures, including areas
covering financial, operational, legal compliance controls and risk management functions in 2016.

During the Year, the Board considered the Group’s internal control system as adequate and effective and that the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the CG Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is an employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company's affairs. The Company Secretary will comply with the relevant training requirement under Rule
5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules after listing.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to
a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its Shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business developments and financial performance through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The Company’s website (www.xyzq.com.hk) provides an effective communication platform to the
public and the Shareholders.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The AGM provides a useful forum for the Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The chairman as well as chairlady/
chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are pleased to answer the enquires
raised by the Shareholders’ questions. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate
issue, including the election of individual directors. All the announcements and circulars are published on the Company's
website (www.xyzg.com.hk) and on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The articles of association of the Company was adopted by the Board on 27 July 2016 and became effective on the Listing
Date. A copy of the Articles of Association is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the
period from the Listing Date up to the date of this report, there was no significant change in constitutional documents of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution will be proposed for each issue raised at a general
meeting, including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at a general meeting will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a
timely manner after each general meeting.

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene extraordinary general meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
AGM is held in each year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, shall
be called an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM").

Pursuant to the Articles, the Shareholders, holding at the date of deposit of the written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, may require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so.

The requisition must state the purposes of the EGM and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at 32/F, Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders at Shareholders’ Meetings

If a Shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at the AGM/EGM which is to be held, such Shareholder should submit a
written notice of the proposal with his/her detailed contact information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 32/F, Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put their enquiries to the board

The enquiries must be in writing with the detailed contact information of the requisitionists and deposited to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 32/F, Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong or by email to ir@xyzq.com.hk.

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for election as a director

Pursuant to the Articles, a written notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting of the Company for which such notice is given of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a written notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 32/F, Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such notices are given, shall be at least seven days
and that the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting of the Company appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting. The written notice must state that person’s biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director are posted on the Company’s website.



42

CHINA INDUSTRIAL SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

To comply with the requirements set in the Appendix 20 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG"”) Reporting Guide of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "ESG Guide"”), China Industrial Securities International Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, and together with
its subsidiaries, “the Group”) hereby presents this Environmental, Social and Governance report (“this report”) for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Mainly focusing on creating customer value, advancing employee value, emphasizing shareholder
and investor value, exploring social responsibility’s value, and practicing environmental value under the theme of 'developing
sustainable value'.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of brokerage services, loans and financing services, investment banking, asset
management services and proprietary trading. The Group strives to create positive values to shareholders, stakeholders and
customers and committed to fulfill the objectives as follows:

Enhancing the sustainable value of stakeholders. The Group attaches great importance to the multi-channel interaction
with the stakeholders. Adhering to the core values of “advancing employee value and creating customer value”, the Group can
meet the various demands of customers through the creation of specialised and diversified products. The Group respects for
employee diversity, and develops competitive compensation system and prospective career path and training for employees. The
Group is committed to dedicating itself in achieving best interests for shareholders and investors and satisfying the sustainable
development. Meanwhile, in order to achieve the harmonious and sustainable development between the Group and society,
the Group is concerned with and actively involved in the construction of community livelihood, and considers it as one of the
important ways to pay back the society.

Integrating sustainability into business practices. The Group is very concerned about the impact of its operations on the
environment, and therefore green office and low carbon policies are actively promoted among the employees to reduce energy
consumption, greenhouse gas emissions and air pollutants emissions. In order to achieve a more prominent environmental
performance, the Group plans to promote the use of renewable energy and preserves environmental resources through various
measurements to achieve its sustainable development.

Committing to the development of sustainable finance. As a financial services provider, the Group is eager to provide
green financial services for upstream and downstream companies, thus to protect and improve the ecological environment. The
Group has been attempting to assess environmental and social factors in various businesses, thereby gradually achieving the
coordinated development of the Group, the environment and the society. The Group plans to increase investment and financing
projects in environmental and social fields step by step.

Fulfilling social and environmental responsibilities is the vision of the Group. The Group will keep creating greater value
for stakeholders, and supporting charities and environmental protection. By participating in the improvement of people’s
livelihood, the Group can contribute to the sustainable development of society and the environment.

The following sections provide more information about the Group’s practices in areas of enhancing the sustainable value of
stakeholders, integrating sustainability into business practices and committing to the development of sustainable finance.
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INTERACTION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group attaches great importance to the views of stakeholders and applies diversified platforms to interact effectively with
different stakeholders. On the basis of management’s discussion and analysis, this report takes the stakeholders’ critical focus
into consideration in response to their expectations of the Group.
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CREATE CUSTOMER VALUE

Insisting on the strategic ideology of being “professional, standardised, and market-oriented” and “customer-centric” service
awareness, the Group can provide value-added products and professional service to meet the diverse needs of customers. By
providing a wide range of products, including the securities business, global futures, investment banking, asset management,
fixed income, private wealth management and other investment and financing business, the Group is determined to build a
sustainable relationship with customers.

Know your customers from multi dimensions

In order to provide the best service to customers and to minimise risks from both customers and the Group’s own operations,
the Group will take all reasonable steps to confirm the identification, financial situation, investment experience and investment
objective of each client before establishing a business relationship. In the context of developing sustainable value, the
Group is active to integrate environmental and social factors into the consideration in Know Your Customers and to extend
environmental and social factors to all customer-related businesses such as due diligence, customer evaluation, etc. Hence, the
Group could gradually achieve the coordinated development among the Group, the environment, and the society.

One-stop Services Meet Diverse Demands of Customers

With the rise of the integration of mainland and Hong Kong's financial markets and the internationalism of Chinese capital in
recent years, the Group has built mutual trust with a huge base of Chinese customers and actively opened up global investment
market opportunities and approached global customers. As the Group has committed to the diversification of customer
sources, in particular, localization, the Group strives to provide comprehensive high-quality services for institutional clients and
individual investors.

The Group provides a full range of brokerage services to customers who intend to obtain profits from market volatility. On
behalf of clients, the Group can trade listed securities, futures, options, other securities, eligible A-shares, and securities and
futures in overseas market (including the United States, Taiwan, Singapore, Australia, the United Kingdom and Germany)
through the broker with the relevant trading licenses. The Group provides loans and financing services to customers who
wish to either obtain maximum benefit through leverage or meet their business needs through external financing. The Group
provides investment banking services, including sponsorship for companies seeking initial public offering or listing on the
HKEx, underwriting the initial public offering stocks and bonds, selling stocks and bonds in secondary market, and provision
of financial advisory services to the client who seeks for external financing strategies. The Group provides asset management
products for customers who wish to seek the best balance between risk and opportunities to obtain profits. The Group also
provides clients with a private wealth management pension program developed by a third party. A broad portfolio of service
offerings enables the Group to accumulate expertise in diverse service areas, and to customise products or services to meet
customer needs.

Interact with Customers through Multi Channels

Not only does the Group’s professional teams have solid business knowledge and rich industry experience to grasp the latest
developments in capital market and financial industry, but the Group can also understand customer needs and expectations.
Through the latest information technology, the Group can provide customers with full-business chain and high-quality
integrated financial services.
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The Group provides customers with the latest market research reports, real-time market information, individual stock
performance, and appointment booking service to open an account through the WeChat official account. Through the video
website, the weekly capital market news is broadcast every week by CHOW Ka Yee, the co-director of the market development
department, sharing the topics and insights on macro market and industry. Market information can be shared with customers
timely by teleconference, and panel discussions. Customers can have access to information of market fluctuations and industry
cycle, combined with the macro environment, during which the Group can discuss or promote important research results with
related institutional clients.
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Customer Complaints Handling and Improving Mechanism

To improve service standard and to better win the trust of customers, the Group has built a complete complaint management
system in compliance with the requirements of the Securities and Futures Commission’s regulatory for licensed companies and
subsidiaries so as to conduct and strengthen handling customer complaints. The Group has carefully handled any complaints
with ‘customer-centricity’ to provide a high-standard of service, and follow the complaints handling procedures to ensure
all complaints to be handled fairly, timely and promptly. The compliance department head is appointed as the customer
complaints officer by the Group to facilitate the customer complaints handling. Through the induction and analysis of customer
complaints, the compliance department and the responsible department should bring suggestions forward for business
compliance, as well as strengthening and improving the weakness reflected in the customer complaints. Upon completion of
the handling of the complaints, the group keeps to follow up the clients to see their feedbacks.

Customers Complaint Handling Procedure

Responsible departments
verify the complaint
situation and return
feedback to the

01 compliance department.
If staff involved in
violating the rules,

compliance department
will investigate further

02

The compliance

The compliance department
fills out the customer
complaint handling form, and
transfers to the responsible
departments involved for
follow-up processing

After the Board of
Directors make a
decision, the compliance

department shall submit a
written report as soon as
possible after investigation
to the Board of Directors
of the group for decision.

03

department should
inform the customer of
the decision and provide
the appropriate advices
within 3 days
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Customer Privacy Protection and Customer Information management

In order to encourage all employees to strive to comply with the highest standards of business ethics when serving customers,
and to help the Group enhance self-restraint for lawful operation, the Group has developed a code of ethics — ‘Compliance
Manual’. Protecting customer privacy is the foundation and professionalism of being responsible for clients. The Group has
always been pursuing strict confidentiality principles, for example, adopting appropriate measures to protect the company’s
confidential information, disallowing to disclose confidential information to others in any way, and not using confidential
information inappropriately. The Group does not disclose any confidential information except to disclose and provide
confidential information in accordance with legal and regulatory requirements. To this end, the Group has taken a number
of specific measures to warn all employees to pay attention to customer privacy issues when serving clients. Employees, for
example, who are employed or were employed by the Group should be responsible for information confidentiality. Morever,
employees should be careful when discussing the confidential information outside the office especially with those who are not
authorised to access to. In addition, the documents containing confidential information should be kept in good condition and
discarded properly after use.

Additionally, on the basis of the relevant provisions of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and the ‘New Guidance on Direct
Marketing’ issued by the Office of Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data in Hong Kong, the Group has formulated the
‘Regulations on Direct Marketing Act’ to ensure adequate monitoring of customer information used in direct marketing so as
to manage customer information effectively. The Group requires that customer consent should be granted before conducting
any promotional applications. However, the customer can change the preference on the use of personal information at any
time, and the Group shall update customers’ latest orders timely. During this reporting period, the Group did not receive any
substantiated complaints on loss of customer information.

ADVANCE EMPLOYEES VALUE

The Group regards employees as an important asset, adhering to the principle of being 'hard working and creative, diligent
and dedicated, honest and self-disciplined, professional and self-governed’. The Group values people and insists on advancing
employees value. By improving human resources management mechanism and caring about the lives and career needs of
employees, the Group strives to provide employees with an optimistic and positive, harmonious and diverse, sustainable and
humanised work atmosphere.
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Respect for Employees Diversity

In order to standardise the group recruitment management, the Group follows the principle of ‘professionalism orientation,
scientific selection, standardised management and relative avoidance’ in the recruitment management. The Group emphasises
the specialisation, marketisation, equality and fairness to ensure a scientific, timely and effective selection process, thus
attracting all kinds of excellent and suitable personnel to meet the needs for talents of the Group. On the basis of the Code
of Practice in Employment on the Ground of Sexual Orientation issued by the Society for Community Organization, the
Disability Discrimination Ordinance issued by the Equal Opportunities Commission, the Family Status Discrimination Ordinance
and the Race Discrimination Ordinance, and Code of Practice against Discrimination in Employment on the Ground of Sexual
Orientation issued by the Hong Kong Government Constitution and Mainland Affairs Bureau and other relevant laws and
regulations, the Group has drawn up an ‘employee handbook’ that all employees must follow to ensure that employees,
regardless of sex, age, nationality, physical defects, etc., are respected in the Group and have equal opportunities for career
development. The Group prohibits employment discrimination and forced labor, and resolutely put an end to the employment
of child labor.

Summary of Employee Data

Gender
Male 84
Female 50

Age distribution of present employees

Under 30 28
31 to 40 62
41 to 50 35
Above 50 9
Areas

Hong Kong 110
Mainland 23
Canada 1

The Group had a total of 134 employees (including directors) by December 31, 2016, of whom 63% were male and 37% were
female. Employees between 31 to 40 years old are the main force of the Group, accounting for 46.3%. The Group tends to
provide more opportunities to the younger generation as there are 28 employees under 30 years old, and only 9 employees are
above 50 years old. The Group has pushed on localization process, with 110 local employees, 23 employees in the Mainland
and 1 employee in the Canada. During the reporting period, the Group did not receive any complaints about discrimination
cases.
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CAREER DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has committed to providing employees with an ideal career development and training platform, and to constantly
improving the performance appraisal system for employees to create a fair development environment. Meanwhile, the
Group provides a smooth career development path and upstream development for employees. To foster an interactive
work environment and encourage employees to communicate with mangers about career aspiration and ideas, the Group
had conducted a review of employee performance on a regular basis, giving the supervisor a better understanding of the
strengths and advantages of each employee and then co-exploring the career development opportunities. The appointment
and promotion of an employee are determined by the performance, ability and appraisal result. Employees with outstanding
performance could be promoted exceptionally.

The Group has always been concerned about the growth of employees, and attaches great importance to training through
investing sufficient resources in training and development to maintain competitiveness of the Group. Each licensed employee
intended to take the continuous training course offered by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission can receive a
subsidy of HK $500 per supervised category. The annual maximum amount per person is HK $1,000. Additionally, intended to
help employees to achieve better work performance in future career, the Group provides a variety of training resources and
channels, and builds a sound training system, including new employee orientation, on-the-job training, and manager-enhance
training.

SALARY, COMPENSATION, AND BENEFITS

The Group strictly abides by the laws and regulations on labor and human rights in the place of operation. Through the
establishment of a sound labor contract system, compensation, welfare system, occupational health management and other
related measures, the Group can legitimate rights and interests of employees. According to the salary assessment system,
the Group takes employee’s development, personal performance, and organizational performance into considerations
when assessing employee compensation. In order to attract talented people, the Group provides employees with market-
competitive Remuneration package. At the same time, the Group also provides comprehensive welfare protection, including
compulsory provident fund schemes, medical insurance, major diseases and accident insurance, and work injury compensation
in accordance with the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance. During the reporting period, 8 employees were resigned, with a
turnover rate of 6.75%. Among them, 6 employees were associates and 2 were managers.
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BALANCING WORK AND LIFE

The Group is committed to providing employees with a safe, healthy, and humanised working environment. The Group has two
offices with a total area of 25,019 square feet in AIA Central on Connaught Road and Infinitus Plaza on Des Voeux Road, Hong
Kong. The office area has installed emergency power systems and continuous lighting systems. The exit aisles are equipped
with lighting panels ‘Exit" in both Chinese and English to guide the way out of the workplace when an emergency (especially
fire) occurs. Rest area, coffee break area, maternal room and informal meeting area are also provided, so that employees can
take a short break during working to ensure more efficient work.

The Group believes that employees will have a better performance when achieving a work-life balance, thus encouraging
employees to pursue personal interests and achieve physical and mental health. The Group attaches importance to the family-
friendly attitude, and strives to create a working environment that reflects the needs of the family. Provided with expectant
maternity leave, maternity leave, marriage leave, and funeral leave, employees can manage their work and life effectively.
During the reporting period, two female employees applied for maternity leave and two employees applied for marriage leave.
In order to help employee alleviate the work pressure and achieve self-improvement, the Group organises regular sports and
recreational activities for employees and their family members, including employee dinner, badminton, table tennis, golf and
other ball games, different interest classes, etc.
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EMPHASISE SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS VALUE

To achieve the best interests of shareholders and investors and to meet the Group
vision of sustainable development, the Group spares no effort to build a wide range of
products and professional services. The Group is determined to help shareholders and
investors to understand the market deeply and to become an international integrated
financial services company.

Through multi-channel communication, including the latest market research reports on
Wechat official account, real-time market information, regular seminars, lectures and
forums, the Group can increase the awareness of shareholder and investors in regard
of investment. Meanwhile, the group can strengthen the communication between
the management and the shareholders through the annual shareholders’ meeting and
press conferences on the interim and annual performance. The Group was awarded
the ‘2016 The Most Valuable Company to be Invested’ in the China Financing Listed
Company Award organised by Hong Kong's well-known financial magazine ‘China
Financing’. The award recognised and affirmed the Group’s outstanding achievements
in operating performance, public image, overseas expansion and overseas brands
establishment.

EXPLORING SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY VALUE

The Group has been committed to becoming the main force to promote social development and to actively serve the
community. The Group regards building a better society and repaying society as an important way to realise the enterprise’s
value, and thus attaches great importance to and takes the initiative to participate in community events and takes social
responsibility. The Group will continue to carry out public welfare activities, and strives to achieve the harmonious and
sustainable development between the Group and society.

To Build a Strict and Effective Firewall for Anti-corruption and Anti-money Laundering

The financial industry plays a very important role in supporting social anti-corruption and the Group has also insisted on
promoting the construction of honest and uncorrupted environment. The Group requires all employees to maintain proper
integrity and moral standards in dealing with matters. All employees of the Group are regulated by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, and employees outside Hong Kong must comply with local legislation to prevent bribery. Money laundering not only
affects the security and stability of market order and the fairness and justice of the society, but also directly threatens national
interests. Therefore, to fulfill the responsibility to combat money laundering and terrorist fund raising and to raise awareness
of employees of such activities, the Group implements ‘Requirements on Anti-Money Laundering/Terrorist Fund Raising’. During
the reporting period, the Group did not receive any complaints on corruption and money laundering.
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Actively Serve the Community and Support public welfare undertakings

In addition to providing high-quality products and services to customers, the Group also engages local community activities
and actively participates in various social developments and public welfare projects which focus on groups in need. On March
13, 2016, the Group's corporate finance team participated in the ‘2015/16 New Territories Walk" event held by the Hong Kong
Community Chest and donated HK$50,000 to support the charity event, which would be used to assist families in need. The
Group will continue to encourage employees to participate in volunteer work to serve the community and actively establish
strategic relationships with non-governmental organizations for further connection with the community.

PRACTICING ENVIRONMENTAL VALUE

The Group is highly concerned about the impact of its own operations on the environment. Green office policy, including
energy saving policy and improvement of resource utilization efficiency, plus green financial services are all encouraged. The
Group is committed to fulfilling the environmental protection and realizing the harmonious and sustainable co-development
between the Group and the environment.

Environmental Low Carbon Policy

The group has adopted a series of measures to reduce GHG emissions. For example, encourage employees to select direct
flights for unavoidable business trips and take an advantage of video conferencing seminars to replace non-essential overseas
business trips. The Group plans to purchase carbon emissions and participate in carbon offset program to promote renewable
energy and protect environmental resources.

The Group actively promotes green operations and takes a number of measures to conserve electricity: turning off unnecessary
lighting during lunch, overtime and non-office hours; posting tips/slogans next to lighting switches and office equipment (e.g.
copiers, printers, etc.) to remind employees to turn off lighting fixtures and printers after use.

The Group promotes green and low-carbon travel, and encourages employees to take public transport. The company vehicle
is a passenger car that is fueled by unleaded petrol in line with Euro 5 emission standards. The Group has been regularly
maintained the vehicle for the purpose of avoiding unnecessary fuel consumption and thus air pollutants due to low fuel
efficiency accordingly. Tires are inspected and inflated to ensure proper tire pressure. Engine is required to be idle when the
vehicle is not in motion.
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The Group actively promotes paperless office policies to reduce the consumption of paper. Employees, for example, are
encouraged to communicate electronically (e.g. e-mail), to use electronic devices to reduce printing documents and reports
such as projector, electronic scanning, electronic faxing, etc. Secondly, double-sided printing and ink-saving mode are set as
default for printers.

PROMOTE GREEN FINANCE

As a financial service institution, the Group not only focuses on the impact of its operations on the environment but also
attempts to provide green finance to upstream and downstream companies for protecting and improving the ecological
environment. The Group has been actively exploring the green finance sector. In addition to integrating environmental and
social factors into the consideration in Know Your Client, the Group will gradually increase the environmental and social
assessment when evaluating investment and financing projects.
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To the shareholders of China Industrial Securities International Financial Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Industrial Securities International Financial Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 59 to 139, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Key audit matter

Allowance for individual impairment losses on
accounts receivables from margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities and loans
receivable

We identified the allowance for individual impairment losses
on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities and loans receivable
as a key audit matter due to the significant judgement in
determing whether objective evidence of impairment exists
and the related estimation uncertainty in assessing the
ultimate recovery of these receivables.

Accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the
business of dealing in securities and loans receivable are
HK$3,715,833,985 and HK$75,400,000 respectively as at
31 December 2016. No impairment loss is recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Management assesses the ultimate recovery of these
receivables, by considering various factors, including the
current creditworthiness, the past collection history of each
client or borrower and the realisable value of securities or
collaterals from clients or borrowers and their guarantors
which are held by the Group. For further details, refer
to the disclosure of key source of estimation uncertainty
and disclosure of loans receivable accounts receivable
from margin clients arising from the business of dealing
in securities in notes 5, 19 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to allowance for individual
impairment losses on accounts receivables from margin
clients arising from the business of dealing in securities and
loans receivable included:

e understanding through enquiry with the management
the established policies and procedures on credit risk
management of the Group, assessing and evaluating
the design of controls with respect to identification
of impaired accounts receivable from margin clients
arising from the business of dealing in securities and
loans receivable and testing the key controls on major
lending;

e in respect of accounts receivable from margin clients,
examining whether the master client agreements
contain the right to dispose the securities collateral
for settlement for clients’ obligations and testing the
key control on margin lending;

e in respect of the accounts receivable from margin
clients with guarantees provided, examining, on a
sample basis, the guarantee agreements for the legal
enforceable right to dispose the securities of clients’
guarantors for settlement of the respective clients’
obligations;

e in respect of loans receivable, examining, on a sample
basis, loan agreements for the legal enforceable right
to dispose the securities collateral for settlement of
borrowers’ obligations; and

e on a sample basis, evaluating management’s
judgement over the recoverability and creditworthiness
of the individual clients and borrowers and assessing
whether impairment loss is required against the
available information, such as the recoverable
amount of securities collateral, past collection history
of borrowers, the Group's actual loss experience
and subsequent repayment of monies or additional
collateral received from clients or their guarantors.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report is HO, Chung Kai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
24 March 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Note HK$ HK$
Revenue 6 507,300,113 364,324,168
Other income 6 7,419,660 3,865,371
Finance costs 8 (73,251,260) (45,843,172)
Commission and fee expenses 9 (47,536,937) (79,996,504)
Staff costs 10 (129,440,925) (100,009,268)
Other operating expenses (92,383,061) (85,253,840)
Listing expenses (22,899,313) (1,598,329)
Other gains or losses 10 (15,831,828) (7,419,313)
Profit before taxation 10 133,376,449 48,069,113
Taxation 117 (32,256,895) 2,434,920
Profit for the year 101,119,554 50,504,033
Other comprehensive (expense) income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating financial statements of
foreign operation - (58,172)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 10,379,590 =
Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (48,484,195) -
Reclassification of exchange differences on translating
financial statements of foreign operation upon 100%
redemption of a wholly owned investment fund - 18,501,752
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year (38,104,605) 18,443,580
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
owners of the Company 63,014,949 68,947,613

Earnings per share
Basic (expressed in HKD) 14 0.0420 0.0991




60

CHINA INDUSTRIAL SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2016

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Loans receivable
Statutory deposits
Deposits, other receivables and prepayments

Current assets
Accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Statutory deposits
Deposits, other receivables and prepayments
Amounts due from related parties
Bank balances — trust accounts
Bank balances — general accounts and cash

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accruals and other payables
Amounts due to related parties
Tax payable
Bank borrowings
Other borrowings

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
Other liability
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Notes

15
18
17
19
20
21

22
19
16

20
21
23
24
24

25
26
23

28
29

27

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
6,942,085 10,170,765
2,612,040 3,019,998
3,181,350,771 -
2,000,000 —
8,875,453 9,717,842
7,612,939 6,585,008
3,209,393,288 29,493,613
4,090,591,460 2,683,432,603
73,400,000 282,300,000
1,803,902,667 -
3,614,360 12,385,409
73,249,491 11,384,185

- 3,804,021
3,171,106,387 1,655,617,525
972,889,752 238,022,069
10,188,754,117 4,886,945,812
4,646,186,272 1,943,190,294
99,594,969 57,285,281
3,928,514 -
33,267,865 149,650
4,142,518,829 2,416,068,466
177,577,860 -
9,103,074,309 4,416,693,691
1,085,679,808 470,252,121
= 873,961

748,295 1,615,788
4,294,324,801 497,255,985
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2016 2015
Notes HK$ HK$
Capital and reserves

Share capital 30 400,000,000 1,000
Share premium 3,379,895,424 -
Retained earnings (accumulated losses) 98,514,317 (2,605,237)
Investments revaluation reserve 31 (38,104,605) -
Other reserves 11,577,844 8,419,401
Capital reserve 31 442,441,821 491,440,821
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 4,294,324,801 497,255,985

The consolidated financial statements on page 59 to 139 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
24 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Huang Jinguang Zeng Yanxia
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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At 1 January 2015

Deemed capital contribution from
Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) (Note b)
Issue of shares upon incorporation
of the Company
Effect of group reorganisation
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

At 31 December 2015
Deemed capital contribution from
Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) (Note b)
Issue of shares for acquisition of
the Combined Businesses pursuant to
the Group Reorganisation
(Notes a(i) and (ii))
Issue of shares to CISI Holdings and
Pre-IPO investors (Note 30)
Issue of shares under ESPS (Note 30)
Capitalisation issue of shares (Note 30)
Issue of shares through initial public offering
("IPO") upon listing (Note 30)
Transaction costs attributable to issue of
shares through IPO upon listing
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

At 31 December 2016

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

(Accumulated

Investments losses)
Share Share Capital revaluation Other Exchange retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
(Notes a (Note 31) (Note b) (Note ¢)
and 31)
- - - - 492,230,760 (18,443,580) (53,109,270) 420,677,910
- - - - 7,630,462 - - 7,630,462
1,000 - = = (1,000) - - _
= = 491,440,821 - (491,440,821) = = =
- - - - - - 50,504,033 50,504,033
- - - - - 18,443,580 - 18,443,580
- - - - - 18,443,580 50,504,033 68,947,613
1,000 - 491,440,821 - 8,419,401 - (2,605,237) 497,255,985
= = = — 3,158,443 — — 3,158,443
48,999,000 - (48,999,000) - - - - -
211,881,188  1,928,118,807 = — — — - 2,139,999,995
27,702,970 252,097,030 - - - - - 279,800,000
11,415,842 (11,415,842) - = - _ _ _
100,000,000  1,230,000,000 - - - - - 1,330,000,000
= (18,904,571) = = = = = (18,904,571)
- - - - - - 101,119,554 101,119,554
= = = (38,104,605) = = = (38,104,605)
= = = (38,104,605) = - 101,119,554 63,014,949
400,000,000 3,379,895,424 442,441,821 (38,104,605) 11,577,844 - 98,514,317  4,294,324,801
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(i) As at 31 December 2015, capital reserve represents 489,990,000 consideration shares of HK$0.1 each to be issued
by China Industrial Securities International Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) to China Industrial Securities
International Holdings Limited (“CISI Holdings”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong)
Financial Holdings Limited (“Industrial Securities (Hong Kong)”) for the acquisition of the Combined Businesses (as
defined in note 2(d) to the consolidated financial statements) pursuant to the Group Reorganisation (as defined in note
2 to the consolidated financial statements) as more fully explained in note 2(d).

(ii) On 22 January 2016, 489,990,000 consideration shares of HK$0.1 each were issued by the Company to CISI Holdings.

(iii) As at 31 December 2016, capital reserve represents the difference between 489,990,000 consideration shares at par
value of HK$0.1 each issued by the Company and the consideration for the acquisition of the Combined Businesses
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation as more fully explained in note 2(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserves represent the deemed capital contribution from Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) with regard to consultancy
services provided by EFEAAAR (R BFRAA], a wholly owned subsidiary of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) (“Industrial
Securities (Shenzhen)”) to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group"”) during the period from
1 January 2016 to 26 September 2016 and the year ended 31 December 2015. As described in note 2, Industrial Securities
(Shenzhen) is not included in the Combined Business. The directors of the Company considers that the consultancy services
provided by Industrial Securities (Shenzhen) should be accounted for as operating expenses of the Combined Business for the
the period from 1 January 2016 to 26 September 2016 and the year ended 31 December 2015. No remuneration is required
to be paid by the Group to Industrial Securities (Shenzhen). As a result, deemed capital contribution from Industrial Securities
(Hong Kong) amounting to HK$3,158,443 and HK$7,630,462 is recognised in other reserves for the the period from 1
January 2016 to 26 September 2016 and the year ended 31 December 2015 respectively. Since 27 September 2016, Industrial
Securities (Shenzhen) has started to receive service fees from the Company under the service agreement as more fully explained
in note 39(c).

Exchange reserve represents the exchange difference arising from translating the financial statements of CISI Investment Fund
Segregated Portfolio Company — IS RMB Fixed Income Fund Segregated Portfolio (“ISRFIF”), in which its functional currency was
Renminbi (“RMB"). ISRFIF was terminated on 12 November 2015.
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2016 2015
Note HK$ HK$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 133,376,449 48,069,113
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 73,251,260 45,843,172
Depreciation of property and equipment 8,054,385 6,681,403
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment (9,450) 422
Amortisation of intangible assets 930,736 652,344
Net realised gain from available-for-sale financial assets (48,484,195) -
Release of exchange differences on redemption of capital from
foreign operation - 18,501,752
Consultancy services provided by Industrial
Securities (Shenzhen) 2 3,158,443 7,630,462
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 170,277,628 127,378,668
Decrease in statutory deposits 9,613,438 30,802,811
(Increase) decrease in deposits, other receivables and prepayments (62,893,237) 18,315,106
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (1,803,902,667) 579,536,797
Increase in accounts receivable (1,407,158,857) (2,031,421,808)
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable 206,900,000 (124,800,000)
Increase in bank balances — trust accounts (1,515,488,862) (1,215,243,151)
Increase in accounts payable 2,702,995,978 1,230,069,470
Increase in accruals and other payables 39,335,956 45,469,772
(Decrease) increase in other liability (873,961) 873,961
Increase in amounts due to related parties 3,928,514 -
Cash used in operations (1,657,266,070) (1,339,018,374)
Tax paid (6,173) (400,678)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,657,272,243) (1,339,419,052)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment (4,828,855) (4,098,533)
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment 12,600 -
Purchase of intangible assets (522,778) (850,962)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 4,530,961,901 -
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (7,701,933,082) -
Repayment from Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) 3,804,021 -
Advances to Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) - (3,804,021)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (3,172,506,193) (8,753,516)
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2016 2015
Note HK$ HK$

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (70,277,528) (46,560,538)
Bank borrowings raised 12,487,439,182 4,625,000,000
Repayments of bank borrowings (10,760,988,819) (3,195,431,534)
Other borrowings raised 177,577,860 -
Proceeds from issue of new shares 3,749,799,995 -
Expenses of issue of new shares (18,904,571) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 5,564,646,119 1,383,007,928
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 734,867,683 34,835,360
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 238,022,069 203,186,709
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 972,889,752 238,022,069

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS REPRESENTED BY

Bank balances — general accounts and cash 24 972,889,752 238,022,069

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE
Interest received 252,847,231 161,206,200

Dividend received - 2,063,592
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

1.  GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Cayman Companies Law on 21 July 2015. Its immediate holding company is CISI Holdings and CISI Holdings
is 100% owned by Industrial Securities (Hong Kong), the intermediate holding company of the Company. Industrial
Securities Company Limited (“Industrial Securities”), a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), is the ultimate holding company of the Company. The shares of Industrial Securities are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange in the PRC.

The shares of the Company have been listed in the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 20 October 2016. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

2. GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Under the group reorganisation, as more fully explained in the section headed “History, Reorganisation and Group
Structure — Reorganisation” in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 September 2016 (the “Prospectus”), to
rationalise the group structure in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange (the
“Group Reorganisation”), the following steps were taken place:

(a) Prior to 18 December 2015, the business of the Group was conducted by Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) and
its subsidiaries, which are wholly owned by Industrial Securities.

(b) On 20 July 2015, CISI Holdings was incorporated and registered as an exempted company with limited liabilities
in the Cayman Islands under the Cayman Companies Law, with an initial share capital of HK$1,000, which was
100% held by Industrial Securities (Hong Kong). CISI Holdings was established for the purpose of holding the
Company.

(0 On 21 July 2015, the Company was incorporated with an initial share capital of HK$1,000 which was 100%
held by CISI Holdings. The Company was established for the purpose of being the listing entity on the Stock
Exchange.
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GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(d) On 18 December 2015, Industrial Securities (Hong Kong), CISI Holdings and the Company entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Company will issue 489,990,000 ordinary shares to CISI Holdings
in consideration of receiving the entire business of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) which includes, among
other things, the entire shareholding interest in China Industrial Securities International Brokerage Limited (“CISI
Brokerage”), China Industrial Securities International Asset Management Limited (“CISI Asset Management”),
China Industrial Securities International Futures Limited (“CISI Futures”), China Industrial Securities International
Capital Limited (“CISI Capital”), China Industrial Securities International Finance Limited (“CISI Finance"”),
China Industrial Securities International Investment Limited (“CISI Investment”) and China Industrial Securities
International Wealth Management Limited (“CISI Wealth Management”), which constitute all wholly owned
subsidiaries of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) except Industrial Securities (Shenzhen) and CISI Holdings, and
all other assets, liabilities and contracts of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) (the “Combined Businesses”) and in
consideration of receiving the 489,990,000 ordinary shares of the Company, CISI Holdings issued 489,990,000
ordinary shares to Industrial Securities (Hong Kong). Industrial Securities (Shenzhen) has not been included
in the Combined Businesses and remains as a subsidiary of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) after the Group
Reorganisation.

Upon completion of the Group Reorganisation on 18 December 2015, CISI Brokerage, CISI Asset Management, CISI
Futures, CISI Capital, CISI Finance, CISI Investment and CISI Wealth Management, are beneficially owned as to 100% by
the Company. Subsequent to 31 December 2015, the Company issued 489,990,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
on 22 January 2016 to CISI Holdings. The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respects.

The Combined Businesses and the Company are under common control of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) before and
after the Group Reorganisation.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statements of changes
in equity and the consolidated statements of cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 include
the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Combined Businesses as if the current group structure had been in
existence throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, or since the respective date of incorporation, where this is a
shorter period.

The consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 has been prepared to present
the assets and liabilities of the Combined Businesses as if the current group structure had been in existence as at that
date taking into account the respective date of incorporation, where applicable.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented using the carrying values of the assets, liabilities and
operating results of the Combined Businesses.
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2. GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The directors of the Company considers that the consultancy services provided by Industrial Securities (Shenzhen) was
directly attributable to the Combined Businesses and should be accounted for as operating expenses of the Combined
Business for the period from 1 January 2016 to 26 September 2016 and the year ended 31 December 2015. No
remuneration is required to be paid by the Group to Industrial Securities (Shenzhen). As a result, deemed capital
contribution from Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) amounting to HK$3,158,443 and HK$7,630,462 is recognised
in other reserves for the period from 1 January 2016 to 26 September 2016 and the year ended 31 December 2015
respectively. Since 27 September 2016, Industrial Securities (Shenzhen) received service fee from the Company under
the service agreement as more fully explained in note 39(c).

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has consistently applied all HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™) which are effective as at 1 January 2016 throughout the year.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and the related
amendments?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement of share-based payment
transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance contracts?

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and

and HKAS 28 its associate or joint venture*

W Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continuea)

Except as described below, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management policies as at 31 December 2016, application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the classification and measurement of the Group's financial
assets. The Group's available-for-sale financial assets will either be measured as fair value through profit or loss or be
designated as FVTOCI (subject to fulfillment of the designation criteria). In addition, the expected credit loss model may
result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets measured at
amortised cost.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continuea)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’
of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on the
amounts reported (e.g. revenue generated from investment banking and asset management business) as the timing
of revenue recognition may be affected by the new standard, and more disclosures relating to revenue is required.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a
detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continuea)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. Under
the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing cash flows.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17,
and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$13,946,256 as disclosed
in note 32. A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of
new requirements may result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors complete a detailed review.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continuea)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Specially, the amendments require the following changes in liabilities arising from financing activities to be disclosed:
(i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application
permitted. The application of the amendments will result in additional disclosures on the Group's financing activities,
specifically reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided on application.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for measurements that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair

value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continuea)

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group serves as the investment manager of investment funds. These investment funds invest mainly in equities,
debt securities and cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s percentage ownership in these structured entities can
fluctuate from day to day according to the Group’s and third-party participation in them. Where the Group is
deemed to control such investment funds, with control determined based on an analysis of the guidance in HKFRS 10
“Consolidated financial statements”, they are consolidated, with the interests of parties other than the Group being
classified as liabilities because there is a contractual obligation for the relevant group entity as an issuer to repurchase
or redeem units/shares in such investment funds for cash. These are presented as “Third-party interests in consolidated
investment funds” within other liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position, if any.

Merger accounting for business combination involving businesses under common
control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements items of the combining businesses in which
the common control combination occurs as if they had been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling party’s
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining businesses from the earliest date presented or since the date when the Combined businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are presented as if the businesses had been
combined at the end of the previous reporting period or when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

Structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in
deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and the relevant
activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements. A structured entity often has restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective, such as to provide investment opportunities for investors by passing on risks and
rewards associated with the assets of the structured entity. Consequently, investment funds managed by the Group are
considered as “structured entities”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the course of the ordinary activities.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Commission income arising from broking business of securities, and futures and option contracts dealings is
recorded as income on a trade-date basis;

Insurance brokerage commission is recognised as income in accordance with the terms of underlying agreements
when the relevant significant acts have been completed, generally at the effective date of the applicable
insurance policies;

Financial advisory fee and sponsor fee, asset management fee, investment advisory fee, custodian and handling
fee income are recognised when services are rendered;

Commission income arising from placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting is recognised as income in
accordance with the terms of the agreements when the relevant significant acts have been completed;

Realised profits or losses from available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are executed whilst the unrealised
profits or losses are recognised from valuation at the end of the reporting period in accordance with the
accounting policies for financial instruments (see the accounting policies below);

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably from a financial asset. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition; and

Dividend income from investments are recognised when the Group's right to receive payment has been
established.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gain or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the arise.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that including a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-
for-sale (“AFS") financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is (i) held for trading (ii) it is designated as at FTVPL. A
financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the net gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss line item. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 36.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans
and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Debt securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including accounts receivable, loans receivable,
other receivables, amounts due from related parties and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest could be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the

investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:
o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with
the exception of accounts receivable and loans receivable, where the carrying amounts are reduced through the use of
allowance accounts. Changes in the carrying amounts of the allowance accounts are recognised in profit or loss. When
an account receivable or loans receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance accounts.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the year.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
financial assets at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including amounts due to related parties, accounts payable, bank borrowings, other borrowings and
other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated statements of
financial position when, and only when the Group currently has legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the income tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient tangible profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of each reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Leasing
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) as defined contribution benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of each reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial period.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Impairment on accounts receivable and loans receivable

The Group reviews its accounts receivable and loans receivable to assess impairment on a regular basis. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recognised in profit or loss, on an individual basis, the Group makes judgments
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the accounts receivable and loans receivable. A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate recovery of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness, the past collection history of each
client or borrower and the realisable value of securities or collaterals from clients or borrowers and their guarantors
which are held by the Group, if any. If the financial conditions of clients or borrowers of the Group and their ability to
make payments improved, reversal of impairment may be required. Details of the balances are set out in notes 19 and
22.

Management uses estimates based on realisable value of securities or collaterals from clients or borrowers and their
guarantors which are held by the Group, reliability of source of repayment, historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to the receivables for determining
their future cash flows and recoverable amounts. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of accounts receivable and loans receivable
are HK$4,090,591,460 and HK$75,400,000 respectively (2015: carrying amount of HK$2,683,432,603 and
HK$282,300,000 respectively).

Income taxes

Due to the unpredictability of future profit streams, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in the consolidated
statements of financial position in relation to the estimated tax losses of approximately HK$42,901,000 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$39,245,000). In cases where it becomes probable that sufficient profits or taxable temporary
differences are expected to be generated, deferred tax assets would be recognised in profit or loss in that period. Details
of the tax losses are disclosed in note 27.
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

Revenue

Brokerage:
Commission and fee income from securities brokerage
Commission and fee income from futures and options brokerage

Loans and financing:
Interest income from margin financing
Interest income from money lending activities

Investment banking:
Commission on placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting
Financial advisory fee income
Sponsor fee income

Asset management:
Asset management fee income
Investment advisory fee income

Wealth management:
Insurance brokerage commission income

2016 2015

HK$ HK$
82,444,968 115,595,417
20,466,463 59,568,979
102,911,431 175,164,396
207,896,302 107,108,132
16,022,705 19,922,056
223,919,007 127,030,188
14,700,911 20,997,217
595,000 2,218,575
5,700,000 2,400,000
20,995,911 25,615,792
7,108,468 5,534,168
2,195,303 1,534,151
9,303,771 7,068,319
2,433,362 =
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

Revenue (Continued)

2016 2015
HK$ HK$

Proprietary trading:
Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 23,322,594 12,902,976
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 2,063,592
Net realised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 23,078,260 21,865,019
Less: unrealised gain recognised in prior year - (7,386,114)
Net unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (18,313,591) -
Interest income from available-for-sale financial assets 60,018,483 -
Net realised gain on available-for-sale financial assets 48,484,195 -
Net realised gain on derivatives 10,884,049 -
Net unrealised gain on derivatives 262,641 =
147,736,631 29,445,473
507,300,113 364,324,168

Other Income
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Interest income from financial institutions 5,939,728 3,277,888
Sundry income 1,479,932 587,483
7,419,660 3,865,371

7. SEGMENT REPORTING

87

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"),
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of services provided.
The CODM considers the Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong. The principal activities of the reportable and
operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Brokerage — provision of securities, futures and options, and insurance brokerage;
Loans and financing — provision of margin financing and secured or unsecured loans to customers;
Investment banking — provision of financial advisory, sponsor, placing and underwriting services;

Asset management — provision of fund management, discretionary account management (previously named wealth
management) and investment advisory services;

Proprietary trading — trading of debt and equity securities, fixed income, derivatives and other financial products.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.
Inter-segment revenues are charged among segments at an agreed rate with reference to the rate normally charged to
third party customers, the nature of services or the costs incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

Segment revenue and result
Revenue from external customers
Net gains on proprietary trading
Inter-segment revenue

Segment revenue and net gains on
proprietary trading

Revenue presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income

Segment results

Unallocated expenses

Profit before taxation presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income

Other segmental information
included in the measure of
segment results

Depreciation

Unallocated:

Amortisation

Unallocated:

Interest income

Unallocated:

Interest expenses

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Loans and Investment Assets Proprietary

Brokerage financing banking management trading  Eliminations  Consolidated
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
105,344,793 223,919,007 20,995,911 9,303,771 - - 359,563,482
- - - - 147,736,631 - 147,736,631

418,699 - 22,597,832 - - (23,016,531) -
105,763,492 223,919,007 43,593,743 9,303,771 147,736,631  (23,016,531) 507,300,113
507,300,113

19,909,567 133,169,658 2,466,713 (4,711,778) 30,552,089 - 181,386,249
(48,009,800)

133,376,449

3,335,750 - 4,470 18,052 133,840 - 3,492,112
4,562,273

8,054,385

266,999 - 500 - 54,199 - 321,698
609,038

930,736

5236,313 223,920,728 2,718 2,019 83,341,077 - 312,502,855
696,957

313,199,812

148,286 44,248,012 - - 91,383,878  (62,528,916) 73,251,260
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Segment revenue and result
Revenue from external customers
Net gains on proprietary trading
Inter-segment revenue

Segment revenue and net gains
on proprietary trading

Revenue presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income

Segment results

Unallocated expenses

Profit before taxation presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income

Other segmental information
included in the measure of
segment results

Depreciation

Unallocated:

Amortisation

Unallocated:

Interest income

Unallocated:

Interest expenses

Loans and Investment Assets Proprietary
Brokerage financing banking  management trading Eliminations  Consolidated
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
175,164,396 127,030,188 25,615,792 7,068,319 = - 334,878,695
- - - - 29,445,473 - 29,445,473
- - - 5,633,995 - (5,633,995) -
175,164,396 127,030,188 25,615,792 12,702,314 29,445,473 (5,633,995) 364,324,168
364,324,168
49,578,718 45,420,958 9,300,573 6,886,655 (6,588,246) 104,598,658
(56,529,545)
48,069,113
3,265,121 - 8,265 12,397 - - 3,285,783
3,395,620
6,681,403
132,861 - 167 - - - 133,028
519,316
652,344
2,684,515 127,030,232 3,421 2,526 13,480,135 = 143,200,829
10,223
143,211,052
665,733 60,208,187 - - 7,798359  (22,829,107) 45,843,172
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7. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Geographical information

Other than the income generated from the proprietary trading business in ISRFIF amounting to approximately
HK$28,383,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's revenue from external customers are all derived
from activities in Hong Kong based on the location of services delivered and the Group’s non-current assets excluded
financial instruments are all located in Hong Kong by physical location of assets. As a result, no geographical segment

information is presented for both years.

Information about major customers

No single customer contributes 10% or more to the Group's revenue from external customers for both years.

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts
Interest on secured margin loans from broker
Interest on other borrowings

Interest on clients’ account

Others

9. COMMISSION AND FEE EXPENSES

Sales commission paid to account executives
Commission and fee paid to brokers
Others (note)

2016 2015

HK$ HK$
70,629,887 45,720,474
2,122,076 =
452,685 =
44,844 122,172
1,768 526
73,251,260 45,843,172
2016 2015

HK$ HK$
26,653,439 37,937,918
11,901,911 25,050,666
8,981,587 17,007,920
47,536,937 79,996,504

Note: Amount includes the custodian fees, scrip fee, clearing fee and other handling fee.
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging (crediting):
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration and five highest paid
employees) (note a) 129,440,925 100,009,268
Salaries and bonuses 127,318,328 97,968,697
Contribution to the MPF Scheme 1,686,575 1,324,552
Other staff costs 436,022 716,019
Auditor’s remuneration 1,376,500 734,711
Legal and professional fee 1,949,023 1,086,110
Minimum operating lease payments 22,220,241 19,293,397
Amortisation of intangible assets 930,736 652,344
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,054,385 6,681,403
Telephone and postage 3,391,748 3,734,758
Maintenance fee 11,933,385 13,307,105
Transportation expenses 2,669,849 2,965,789
Other gains or losses 15,831,828 7,419,313
Exchange loss (gain) 15,841,278 (11,082,861)
Other loss (note b) - 18,501,752
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment (9,450) 422
Entertainment expenses 4,270,273 4,852,121
Notes:
(@) Staff and directors’ bonuses are discretionary and determined with reference to the Group’s and the individual’s
performance. Details of the MPF Scheme is disclosed in note 33.
(b) Amount arising from reclassification of exchange difference on translation of financial statements of foreign operation

upon 100% redemption of ISRFIF, a wholly owned investment fund, during the year ended 31 December 2015. No
such amount was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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11. TAXATION

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Current tax:
PRC Corporate Income Tax - 252,012
Hong Kong Profits Tax 33,267,865 124,958
33,267,865 376,970
(Over)underprovision in prior year:
PRC Corporate Income Tax - (3,421,902)
Hong Kong Profits Tax (143,477) 24,692
(143,477) (3,397,210)
33,124,388 (3,020,240)
Deferred tax (Note 27):
Current year (867,493) 585,320
32,256,895 (2,434,920)

According to Guoshuihan [2009] No. 47 issued by the State Administration of Taxation in the PRC on 23 January 2009
(“Circular 47"), Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors (“QFlls”) would be subject to a corporate income tax rate of
10% on their PRC-sourced dividends, bonus profits and interest. On 17 November 2014, the Ministry of Finance, State
Administration of Taxation and China Securities Regulatory Commission in the PRC, have jointly issued Caishui [2014]
No. 79 (“Circular 79"), which temporarily exempts QFlls and RMB Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors (“RQFlls”)
from capital gains derived from the trading of shares and other equity interest investments on or after 17 November
2014, and those capital gains derived prior to 17 November 2014 would be subject to Corporate Income Tax in
accordance with the relevant laws in the PRC.

In respect of the uncertainty of the definition of equity investments in the PRC tax law, the management of the Group
provided the PRC Corporate Income Tax at a rate of 10% on the net realised and unrealised gain, and accrued interest
on the PRC debt securities held by ISRFIF, a wholly owned investment fund of the Group, through the RQFII program, for
the year ended 31 December 2014. Upon disposal of all debt securities held by ISRFIF and the completion of outbound
repatriation of the monies held by ISRFIF after approval from relevant authorities in the PRC in 2015, the management
of the Group considers that the uncertainty for the PRC Corporate Income Tax on certain income derived by ISRFIF is
significantly reduced, and the overprovision for PRC Corporate Income Tax is reversed in the year ended 31 December
2015.
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TAXATION (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits throughout the years ended 31

December 2016 and 2015.

The tax charge (credit) for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

per the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at domestic income tax rate (16.5%)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in
other jurisdictions
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
Tax effect of income taxable arising from inter-company transaction
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
Overprovision in prior year
Others

Tax charge (credit) for the year

2016 2015

HK$ HK$
133,376,449 48,069,113
22,007,115 7,931,403
- (1,442,204)
11,607,036 9,089,538
(4,871,248) (10,046,504)
3,233,642 -
1,573,019 2,668,888
(969,782) (7,591,488)
(143,477) (3,397,210)
(179,410) 352,657
32,256,895 (2,434,920)
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(@) Directors’ emoluments

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the emoluments paid or payable by the Group are as

follows:
Retirement
benefit
Salaries, Benefits  Discretionary schemes
Fees allowances in kind* bonus contributions Total
HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
(note e)
For the year ended
31 December 2016
Huang Jinguang (notes &, b and d) - 1,736,636 496,000 3,420,000 - 5,652,636
Wang Xiang (notes b, ¢ and d) - 1,452,049 288,800 2,818,000 - 4,558,849
Zeng Yanxia (notes b and ¢) - 757,901 200,000 2,486,700 - 3,444,601
Hong Ying (note ) 86,339 - - - - 86,339
Tian Li (note f) 86,339 - - - - 86,339
Qin Shuo (note 1) 86,339 - - - - 86,339
259,017 3,946,586 984,800 8,724,700 - 13,915,103
Retirement
benefit
Salaries, Benefits  Discretionary schemes
Fees allowances in kind* bonus  contributions Total
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
(note e)
For the year ended
31 December 2015
Huang Jinguang (notes a, b and d) - 1,782,100 492,000 2,870,000 - 5,144,100
Wang Xiang (notes b, ¢ and d) - 1,239,512 218,400 2,340,000 - 3,797,912
- 3,021,612 710,400 5,210,000 - 8,942,012
w Amounts represent benefits in kind of accommodation provided by the Group.
Notes:
(@) Mr. Huang Jinguang was appointed as the director of the Company on 21 July 2015 and acts as chief executive
of the Group.
(b) No retirement benefit schemes contributions was paid or payable by the Group to Mr. Huang Jinguang, Mr.

Wang Xiang and Ms. Zeng Yanxia during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 as Mr. Huang Jinguang,
Mr. Wang Xiang and Ms. Zeng Yanxia are also employees of the ultimate holding company and the cost of
retirement benefit scheme contribution is borne by the ultimate holding company.

(@) Mr. Wang Xiang and Ms. Zeng Yanxia were appointed as the directors of the Company on 1 June 2016.



12.

CHINA INDUSTRIAL SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) The emoluments disclosed above represent emoluments paid or payable to Mr. Huang Jinguang and Mr. Wang
Xiang (including emoluments for services as employees of the group entities prior to becoming the directors of
the Company) by the entities comprising the Group during the years.

(e) The discretionary bonus of directors or chief executive of the Company was determined by the management of
the ultimate and intermediate holding companies and by reference to the Group's financial performance and
the directors’ and the chief executive's duties, responsibilities and individual performance within the Group.

() Ms. Hong Ying, Mr. Tian Li and Mr. Qin Shuo were appointed as the independent non-executive directors
of the Company on 27 July 2016.

Mr. Lan Rong and Ms. Zhuang Yuanfang were appointed as the directors of the Company on 1 June 2016.

The remuneration of Mr. Lan Rong and Ms. Zhuang Yuanfang for the years was borne by the ultimate holding
company and there is no basis of allocation of their remuneration between the ultimate holding company and
the Group.

Highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group included two directors of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Two) and details of whose emoluments are included in the disclosure
above. The emoluments of the remaining three individuals for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Three)
are as below:

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Employees
— salaries and allowances 4,772,613 5,997,367
— discretionary bonus 8,425,000 7,004,000
— retirement benefit schemes contributions 48,000 52,500

13,245,613 13,053,867
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12.

13.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Highest paid individuals (continued)
Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Number of employees

2016 2015
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1 =
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 1 =
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 = 1

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees), as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil). None of the the directors waived any
emoluments during both years.

DIVIDENDS

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016
of HK$0.02 (2015: final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 of Nil) per ordinary share, in an
aggregate amount of HK$80,000,000 (2015: Nil), has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following data on
the assumption that the Group had been in existence throughout the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Earnings (HK$)
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per share:
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 101,119,554 50,504,033
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share 2,410,077,821 509,383,471

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share has been
determined on the assumption that the Reorganisation and the Capitalisation Issue as defined in note 30 had been
effective on 1 January 2015.

For each of the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no potential ordinary shares in issue, thus no
diluted earnings per share is presented.
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15.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

COST

At 1 January 2015
Written off
Additions

At 31 December 2015
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2016

DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2015
Written off

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2015
Eliminated on disposals
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2016

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

Leasehold Motor Furniture Computer

improvement vehicles and fixtures equipment Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
9,135,658 769,307 28,290 12,364,088 22,297,343
= = = (8,443) (8,443)

76,780 - 33,800 3,987,953 4,098,533
9,212,438 769,307 62,090 16,343,598 26,387,433
2,414,339 - 313,450 2,101,066 4,828,855
- - - (63,000) (63,000)
11,626,777 769,307 375,540 18,381,664 31,153,288
(3,656,730) (236,100) (8,456) (5,642,000) (9,543,286)
= = = 8,021 8,021
(2,199,249) (91,337) (9,675) (4,381,142) (6,681,403)
(5,855,979) (327,437) (18,131)  (10,015,121) (16,216,668)
- - - 59,850 59,850
(2,961,774) (91,337) (37,109) (4,964,165) (8,054,385)
(8,817,753) (418,774) (55,240) (14,919,436) (24,211,203)
2,809,024 350,533 320,300 3,462,228 6,942,085
3,356,459 441,870 43,959 6,328,477 10,170,765

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rate per annum:

Leasehold improvement
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment

Over the lease term
12.5%
20%
50%
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2016
HK$
Held for trading
Debt securities
— Listed in Hong Kong 342,441,286
— Listed outside Hong Kong 362,192,298
— Unlisted 189,548,233
894,181,817
Designated at fair value through profit or loss
Convertible bonds
— Listed in Hong Kong 55,012,073
— Listed outside Hong Kong 20,809,809
— Unlisted 16,648,452
Unlisted fund-linked note (note a) 695,295,000
Unlisted credit-linked notes (note b) 121,955,516
909,720,850
1,803,902,667
Notes:
(@) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group purchased an unlisted fund-linked note with nominal amount of

US$90,000,000 issued by a non-bank financial institution. The return of the fund-linked note is linked to the net asset
value of the underlying asset which is a private equity fund, reported by fund administrator. The fund-linked note will
be matured within 1 year.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group purchased unlisted credit-linked notes issued by a non-bank
financial institution. The return of the credit-linked notes are linked to the fair value of the underlying assets which are

listed preference shares.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not hold any financial assets at FVTPL.

Details of disclosure for fair value measurement are set out in note 36.
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17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

2016
HK$
Non-current
Measured at fair value:
Debt securities
— Listed in Hong Kong 2,321,841,771
— Listed outside Hong Kong (note) 808,811,179
— Unlisted 50,697,821
3,181,350,771

Note: Included in the portfolio of debt securities listed outside Hong Kong, the Group transferred debt securities, with a
fair value of HK$348,806,325 at 31 December 2016, to a non-bank financial institution and entered into total return
swap contract, whereby the Group receives cash flow arising from the transferred debt securities and receives the debt
securities upon maturity of the contracts, during the year ended 31 December 2016. The transferred debt securities
were not derecognised and are continued to be recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position at 31
December 2016 as the Group retains significant risks and rewards of the transferred debt securities. Details of the

arrangement are set out in note 34.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not hold any AFS financial assets.

Details of disclosure for fair value measurement are set out in note 36.



CHINA INDUSTRIAL SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ’] O ’I
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software Trading rights Total
HK$ HK$ HK$

COST
At 1 January 2015 2,861,125 1,000,000 3,861,125
Additions 850,962 - 850,962
At 31 December 2015 3,712,087 1,000,000 4,712,087
Additions 522,778 - 522,778
At 31 December 2016 4,234,865 1,000,000 5,234,865
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2015 (1,039,745) - (1,039,745)
Charge for the year (652,344) - (652,344)
At 31 December 2015 (1,692,089) - (1,692,089)
Charge for the year (930,736) - (930,736)
At 31 December 2016 (2,622,825) - (2,622,825)
CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2016 1,612,040 1,000,000 2,612,040
At 31 December 2015 2,019,998 1,000,000 3,019,998

Intangible assets include trading rights in the Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited with
indefinite useful life and the using rights of software with finite life.

Software are initially recognised at cost. The cost less estimated residual values (if any) of the software is amortised on a
straight-line basis over their expected useful lives of 3 years, and charged to the profit or loss.

The trading rights held by the Group are considered by the directors of the Company as having indefinite useful lives
because they are expected to contribute net cash inflows indefinitely. The trading rights will not be amortised until their
useful lives are determined to be finite. Instead, they will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

No impairment loss on intangible assets is recognised during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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19. LOANS RECEIVABLE

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Fixed-rate loans receivable 75,400,000 282,300,000
Analyses as:

Current 73,400,000 282,300,000
Non-current 2,000,000 =
75,400,000 282,300,000

The credit quality of loans receivable are summarised as follows:
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Neither past due nor impaired 75,400,000 282,300,00

The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate loans receivable to interest rate risks and their contractual maturity dates are as
follows:

Fixed-rate loans receivable denominated in HKD

2016 2015
Effective interest rate HK$ HK$
Within one year (2016: 6.00% to 8.25% per annum;
2015: 6.25%t0 8.25% per annum) 73,400,000 282,300,000
In more than one year (2016: 3.00% per annum)
but not more than two years 2,000,000 -
75,400,000 282,300,000

As at 31 December 2016, the loans receivable amounting to HK$73,400,000 (2015: HK$282,300,000) are secured
by listed securities from the borrowers and cash balance in their cash clients’ accounts with aggregates fair value
of HK$142,151,171 (2015: HK$1,963,626,561). At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the fair value of the collateral is
sufficient to cover the balance of loans on an individual basis, and the directors of the Company consider the amounts
to be recoverable. At 31 December 2016, there is an unsecured loan receivable of HK$2,000,000, the directors of the
Company consider the amount to be recovered based on the evaluation of the repayment capacity of the borrower.
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STATUTORY DEPOSITS

Statutory deposits represent deposits with clearing houses. They are non-interest bearing.

Non-current portion

In accordance with the rules of Central Clearing and Settlement System (“CCASS"), admission fee, basic contribution
and dynamic contribution to the guarantee fund of a defaulting clearing participant will be used to offset its

indebtedness arising in the course of dealing in securities as disclosed in note 37 in accordance with the rules of CCASS.

Under the arrangement with HKFE Clearing Corporation Limited ("HKCC"), the statutory deposit could be used to set
off against accounts payable to HKCC.

The directors of the Company do not expect to realise the amounts within twelve months after the reporting period.
Current portion

In accordance with the rules of CCASS, the Group is required to provide to Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited (the “HKSCC") deposits from time to time as determined by HKSCC, as the Group has become a China
Connect Clearing Participant under the rules of CCASS since year 2014. Amounts will be used to offset the Group's

indebtedness arising in the course of dealing in securities as disclosed in note 37 in accordance with the rules of CCASS.
The directors of the Company expect to realise the amounts in its normal operating cycle.

DEPOSITS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Deposits 7,612,939 6,585,008
Other receivables (note a) 22,944,614 4,433,430
Interest receivables (note b) 43,254,328 -
Deferred listing expenses - 306,409
Prepayments 7,050,549 6,644,346
80,862,430 17,969,193

Analysed as:
Current 73,249,491 11,384,185
Non-current 7,612,939 6,585,008

80,862,430 #7.9687193
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21.

22.

DEPOSITS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(@) The amount mainly comprises of the underwriting income receivable from a non-bank financial institution arising from

the underwriting of the Group’s own shares during the IPO.

(b) The amount mainly represents the interest receivables arising from financial assets at FVTPL and AFS financial assets.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable arising from the business of dealing in securities:
Clearing house
Cash clients

Secured margin loans
Brokers

Accounts receivable arising from the business of dealing
in futures and options contracts:

Clearing house
Brokers

Accounts receivable arising from the business of corporate finance

Accounts receivable arising from the business of asset management

Accounts receivable arising from the business of wealth management:

Brokers

Accounts receivable arising from the business of proprietary trading:
Brokers

2016 2015

HK$ HK$
100,521,588 33,762,232
17,623,497 48,528,276
3,715,833,985 2,421,317,090
12,507,183 16,295,234
3,846,486,253 2,519,902,832
21,400,391 18,641,515
148,328,311 134,452,891
169,728,702 153,094,406
309,472 7,941,669
4,092,010 2,493,696
57,041 -
69,917,982 =

4,090,591,460

2,683,432,603
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Except for secured margin loans, the normal settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from the business of
dealing in securities are two days after trade date. The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from the
business of dealing in futures and options contracts are one day after trade date.

In respect of accounts receivable arising from the business of dealing in securities, included in the accounts receivable
from cash clients are debtors with a carrying amount of HK$5,791,160 (2015: HK$14,986,312) as at 31 December
2016, which are past due at the end of each reporting period but which the directors of the Company consider not to
be impaired as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion of the carrying amount
is subsequently settled. The directors of the Company consider full amounts to be recoverable.

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying amount of HK$11,832,337 (2015: HK$33,541,964) are neither
past due nor impaired as at 31 December 2016 and the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the amounts
are recoverable.

For secured margin loans, as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the loans are repayable on demand subsequent to
settlement date and carry interest at Hong Kong prime rate plus 3% per annum during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015. They are generally included in “Neither past due nor impaired” category. The total market value of
securities pledged as collateral in respect of the loans to margin clients were approximately HK$13,752,186,000 (2015:
HK$8,940,763,000) as at 31 December 2016. Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios for calculating their
margin values. Additional funds or collateral are required if the amount of accounts receivable outstanding exceeds the
eligible margin value of securities deposited. As at 31 December 2016, 94% (2015: 98%) of the outstanding balances
were secured by sufficient collateral on an individual basis. The collateral held can be repledged and can be sold at the
Group's discretion to settle any outstanding amount owed by margin clients. Management of the Group has assessed
the market value of the pledged securities of each individual customer that has margin shortfall as at the end of each
reporting period and considered that no impairment allowance is necessary taking into consideration of subsequent
repayment of monies or additional collateral received from clients or their guarantors. The Group had obtained margin
clients’ consent to pledge their securities collateral to secure banking facilities granted to the Group to finance the
margin loan. Details of the Group’s pledged assets are disclosed in note 28.

In respect of accounts receivable arising from the business of dealing in future and options contracts, under the
settlement arrangement with HKCC (the clearing house), all open positions held at HKCC are treated as if they were
closed out and reopened at the relevant closing quotation as determined by HKCC. Profits or losses arising from this
“mark-to-market” settlement arrangement are included in accounts receivables with HKCC. In accordance with the
agreement with the brokers, mark-to-market profits or losses are treated as if they were settled and are included in
accounts receivable with brokers.

Normal settlement terms of accounts receivable arising from the business of corporate finance clients, asset
management clients and wealth management are determined in accordance with the agreed terms, usually within
one year after the service was provided. As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, these accounts receivable are included
in “neither past due nor impaired” category. The management of the Group believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality.
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22.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)
Normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from brokers arising from the business of proprietary trading are
determined in accordance with the agreed terms which are normally two to five days after the trade date. As at 31

December 2016, these accounts receivable are included in “neither past due nor impaired” category.

The aging analysis of the accounts receivable based on past due dates are as follows:

2016 2015
HK$ HK$

Past due (accounts receivable from cash clients):
0 — 30 days 1,353,898 12,741,118
Over 30 days 4,437,262 2,245,194
Accounts receivable which were past due but not impaired 5,791,160 14,986,312
Accounts receivable which were neither past due nor impaired 4,084,800,300 2,668,446,291
4,090,591,460 2,683,432,603

To minimise the Group's exposure to credit risk, there is a credit risk control team responsible for the evaluation of the
customers’ credit rating, financial background and repayment abilities. Management of the Group has set up the credit
limits for each individual customer which could be changed at the Group's discretion. Any further extension of credit
beyond these approval limits has to be first approved by the credit risk management department and then by the senior
management of the Group on individual basis. The Group has a policy for testing for impairment accounts receivable
without sufficient collaterals and those with default or delinquency in interest or principal payments. The assessment
is based on an evaluation of the collectability, aging analysis, current creditworthiness, collaterals value, guarantee
received and the past collection history of each customer.

In determining the recoverability of the accounts receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of
the accounts receivable from the date at which credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The Group has
concentration of credit risk to ten largest margin clients’ exposure representing 41% and 33% of the total loans to
margin clients as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015. The balances due from the ten largest securities
margin clients were approximately HK$1,521,545,000 and HK$806,858,000 as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015 respectively, which is neither past due nor impaired, of which the amount is secured by clients’ securities with
an aggregate fair value of HK$6,786,254,000 and HK$3,293,961,000 as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 respectively.
The Group believes that the amount is considered recoverable given the collateral provided by respective clients and
guarantors of respective clients is sufficient to cover the entire balance on individual basis.

In view of the nature of business of dealing in securities, futures and options contracts and proprietary trading, no aging
analysis on those accounts receivable is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the aging analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of the business.
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of accounts receivable arising from the business of corporate finance clients and asset
management clients net of impairment losses based on date of invoice/contract note at the reporting date:

Corporate finance clients

Less than 31 days

31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
91 — 180 days

Asset management clients

Less than 31 days

31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
91 — 180 days

Over 180 days

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no margin loans were granted to the directors of the Company

and directors of the subsidiaries.

The Group offset certain accounts receivable and accounts payable when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balances; and intends to settle on a net basis or to realise the balances simultaneously. Details are set

out in note 37.

2016 2015

HK$ HK$
96,000 4,254,045
100,000 2,187,624
100,000 =
13,472 1,500,000
309,472 7,941,669
2016 2015

HK$ HK$
908,526 720,084
693,274 255,897
625,247 329,209
663,315 655,181
1,201,648 533,325
4,092,010 2,493,696

Details of the Group's policy on credit risk are set out in note 36.
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23.

24.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED PARTIES

The Group had the following balances with related parties at the end of each reporting period:

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Amount due from Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) (note a) - 3,804,021
Amount due to Industrial Securities (Shenzhen) (note b) (3,928,514) -
Notes:
(@) Amount due from Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) was non-trading in nature, unsecured, repayable on demand, and

non-interest bearing. The maximum amount outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2015 is HK$3,804,021.

(b) Amount due to Industrial Securities (Shenzhen) was mainly arising from the consultancy services provided by Industrial
Securities (Shenzhen), which is unsecured and non-interest bearing.

BANK BALANCES — TRUST ACCOUNTS/GENERAL ACCOUNTS AND CASH

The Group receives and holds money deposited by customers and other institutions in the course of conducting
regulated activities. These customers’ monies are maintained in trust bank accounts and bear interest at commercial
rate. The Group has recognised the corresponding accounts payable to respective customers and other institutions.
However, the Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset those payables with the deposits placed.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's bank balances and cash denominated in United States dollar and Renminbi are
equivalent to HK$2,219,621,608 and HK$60,168,863 (2015: HK$412,219,366 and HK$87,702,820) respectively.

The general accounts held by the Group comprises current and saving deposits held by the Group at prevailing market
interest rate and bank deposits bearing interest at commercial rate with original maturity of three months or less.
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25. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Accounts payable arising from the business of
dealing in securities:
Clearing house 5,860,705 14,316,346
Brokers 2,570,838 23,800,501
Clients 3,053,688,931 1,492,222,004
3,062,120,474 1,530,338,851
Accounts payable arising from the business of
dealing in futures and options contracts:
Clients 485,149,632 412,851,443
Accounts payable arising from the business of
proprietary trading:
Brokers 253,836,244 -
Secured margin loans from broker 845,079,922 -
1,098,916,166 -
4,646,186,272 1,943,190,294

In respect of accounts payable arising from the business of dealing in securities, accounts payable to clearing house
represent trades pending settlement arising from business of dealing in securities transactions which are normally two
trading days after the trade date or at specific terms agreed with clearing house. The majority of the accounts payable
to cash clients and margin clients are repayable on demand except where certain balances represent trades pending
settlement or margin deposits and cash collateral received from clients for their trading activities under the normal
course of business. Only the amounts in excess of the required margin deposits and cash collateral stipulated are
repayable on demand.

Accounts payable to brokerage clients (except certain balances arising from trades pending settlement) mainly include
money held on behalf of clients at banks and at clearing houses by the Group, and are interest-bearing at the prevailing
market interest rate.

In respect of accounts payable arising from the business of dealing in futures and options contracts, settlement
arrangements with clients follow the same settlement mechanism with HKCC or brokers as disclosed in note 20 and
profits or losses arising from mark-to-market settlement arrangement are included in accounts payables with clients.
Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of dealing in futures and option contract are non-interest bearing.
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26.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Continued)

The normal settlement terms of accounts payable arising from the business of dealing in securities for cash clients are
two days after trade date and accounts payable arising from the business of dealing in futures contracts are one day
after trade date. No aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the aging analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of the business.

In respect of accounts payable arising from the business of proprietary trading, accounts payable to brokers represent
trades pending settlement which are normally determined in accordance with the agreed terms and which are normally
two to five days after the trade date.

For secured margin loans from broker, the loans are repayable on demand (except certain balances arising from trades
pending settlement or margin deposits) and are interest-bearing at the prevailing market interest rate. Only the amounts
in excess of the required margin deposits are repayable on demand. The total market value of debt securities pledged as
collateral in respect of the loans was approximately HK$1,355,444,382 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Accrued charges (note a) 88,814,051 55,063,513
Interest payable (note b) 4,577,212 1,603,481
Other payables 6,203,706 618,287
99,594,969 57,285,281
Notes:
(@) The amount mainly comprises of the accrued operating expenses including staff salary and bonus and also

commission to accounts executives.

(b) The amount represents the interest payable arising from bank and other borrowings.
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015:

Accelerated
tax depreciation

HK$
At 1 January 2015 1,030,468
Charge to profit or loss (note 71) 585,320
At 31 December 2015 1,615,788
Charge to profit or loss (note 11) (867,493)
At 31 December 2016 748,295

As at 31 December 2016, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statements of financial
position in relation to estimated tax losses of approximately HK$42,901,000 (2015: HK$39,245,000), as it is uncertain
that there will be sufficient taxable profits for the utilisation. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

BANK BORROWINGS

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Variable rate borrowings 4,142,518,829 2,416,068,466
Repayable within one year and contain
a repayable on demand clause 4,142,518,829 1,624,068,466
Repayable within one year without
a repayable on demand clause - 792,000,000
Repayable within one year 4,142,518,829 2,416,068,466

The bank borrowings consist of loans borrowed by the Group from banks to facilitate investment and general working
capital.
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28.

29.

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The interest rate of the Group's bank borrowings as at 31 December 2016 ranged from Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") +1.5% to HIBOR+2.3% (2015: HIBOR+1.04% to HIBOR+2.7%).

At 31 December 2016, HK$4,142,518,829 (2015: HK$2,416,068,466) was drawn by the Group respectively under
the aggregated banking facilities of HK$5,470,000 (2015: HK$7,265,000,000) of the Group. Industrial Securities
issued a guarantee to support the banking facilities of the Group amounting to HK$2,000,000,000 as at 31 December
2015. Industrial Securities provided letters of comfort to support the banking facilities of the Group amounting to
HK$2,560,000,000 as at 31 December 2015. Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) provided corporate guarantees to
support the banking facilities of the Group amounting to HK$1,535,000,000 as at 31 December 2015.

The Group’s bank borrowings amounting to HK$902,518,829 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$394,068,466)
was secured by charges over clients’ pledged securities with fair value of approximately HK$2,213,886,600
(2015: HK$1,679,079,500) upon receiving client’s authorisation. The Group’s bank borrowings amounting to
HK$1,030,000,000 as at 31 December 2015 was guaranteed by Industrial Securities (Hong Kong). Also, the Group's
bank borrowings amounting to HK$792,000,000 as at 31 December 2015 was guaranteed by Industrial Securities. In
addition to the above guarantees and charges, Industrial Securities provided letters of comfort to support the bank
borrowings of the Group amounting to HK$1,554,068,066 as at 31 December 2015. The above guarantees issued
and letters of comfort provided by Industrial Securities and Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) were released prior to the
listing of the shares of the Company in 2016.

OTHER BORROWINGS

2016 2015
HK$ HK$

Borrowings associated with transferred assets
(as disclosed in note 34) 177,577,860 -

The interest rate of the Group’s other borrowings as at 31 December 2016 is at fixed interest rate of 2.96% (2015: Nil).
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Details of the movement of share capital for both years are as follows:

Authorised:
At date of incorporation
Increase in authorised share capital

As at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
Increase in authorised share capital
Increase in authorised share capital

As at 31 December 2016

Issued and fully paid:
At date of incorporation

As at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
Issue of shares pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation

Issue of shares to CISI Holdings and

pre-IPO investors

Issue of shares under ESPS

Capitalisation issue of shares

Issue of shares through IPO upon listing

As at 31 December 2016

Notes:

(@) On 21 July 2015, the Company was incorporated in Cayman Island with authorised share capital of HK$1,000 divided

into 10,000 shares of HK$0.1 each.

(b) Pursuant to resolutions in writing of the sole shareholder of the Company passed on 18 December 2015, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$1,000 to HK$49,000,000 divided into 490,000,000

shares of a par value of HK$0.1 each.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Note

(a)
(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

")

(9)
(h)
(i)
()

Number of

ordinary

shares of
HK$0.10 each Share capital
HK$
10,000 1,000
489,990,000 48,999,000
490,000,000 49,000,000
2,395,841,579 239,584,158

17,114,158,421

1,711,415,842

20,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

10,000 1,000

10,000 1,000
489,990,000 48,999,000
2,118,811,876 211,881,188
277,029,703 27,702,970
114,158,421 11,415,842
1,000,000,000 100,000,000
4,000,000,000 400,000,000
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

Pursuant to the written resolution of the sole shareholder of the Company passed on 26 April 2016, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from HK$49,000,000 to HK$288,584,158 divided into 2,885,841,579
shares of a par value of HK$0.1 each.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed on 27 July 2016, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$288,584,158 to HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000
shares of a par value of HK$0.1 each.

On 21 July 2015, 10,000 paid shares of HK$0.1 were issued to CISI Holdings.

On 22 January 2016, 489,990,000 paid shares of HK$0.1 were issued to CISI Holdings pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation.

(i) On 26 April 2016, the Company issued 1,485,148,514 ordinary shares of HK$1.01 each with a par value of
HK$0.1 each at a cash consideration of HK$1,499,999,999 to CISI Holdings. All new shares issued rank pari
passu in all respects with the then existing shares.

(ii) On 26 April 2016, the Company issued 633,663,362 shares of HK$1.01 each with a par value of HK$0.1
each, credited as fully paid, for cash consideration of HK$639,999,996 to the pre-IPO investors. Details of
the introduction of pre-IPO investors are set out in section headed “Introduction of Pre-IPO Investors” in the
Prospectus. All new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares.

An employee share participation scheme (“ESPS”) has been adopted by Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) for the
purpose of incentivising the employees of the Group and to align the interest of the management team of the Group
with those of the shareholders of the Company. On 26 April 2016, the Company issued 277,029,703 ordinary shares
of HK$1.01 each under the employee share participation scheme at a total cash consideration of HK$279,800,000. All
new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares. The shares issued and allotted pursuant
to the ESPS (“ES Shares”) are held in a trust. The ES Shares are subject to a lock-up period of twelve months and may
be either (i) sold; or (i) distributed from the trust to the selected employees or directors (“eligible participants”) under
the ESPS, by reference to each eligible participants’ proportional initial contribution of the total consideration paid
for the ES Shares. The Company engaged an independent valuer to conduct valuation of such transactions. Based
on the valuation report prepared by such independent valuer, as at 26 April 2016 (being the date of the grant of ES
Shares), the estimated fair value per ES Share is HK$1.00. In light of such estimated fair value and on the basis that the
subscription price per ES Share is HK$1.01, the directors of the Company consider that the transactions do not have
material financial impact on the Group's financial performance and financial position. Details of the ESPS are set out in
note 33(b) and section headed "History, Reorganisation and Group Structure” in the Prospectus.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholders on 27 July 2016, a sum of HK$11,415,842.1 standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company was capitalised by paying up in full at par a total of
114,158,421 new shares and for allotment and issue to CISI Holdings and pre-IPO investors (the “Capitalisation Issue”).
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

() On 20 October 2016, the Company issued 1,000,000,000 shares at HK$1.33 per share pursuant to the initial public
offering of the Company’s shares for a total gross proceeds of HK$1,330,000,000. The proceeds will be used to finance
the implementation of the business plans as set forth in the section headed “Future Plan and Use of Proceeds” of the
Prospectus.

RESERVES

Capital reserve

As at 31 December 2016, capital reserve represents the difference between 489,990,000 consideration shares at par
value of HK$0.1 each issued by the Company and the consideration for the acquisition of the Combined Businesses
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation (as more fully explained in note 2(d)).

As at 31 December 2015, capital reserve represents 489,990,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each to be issued by the
Company to CISI Holdings, a wholly owned subsidiary of Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation as more fully explained in note 2(d). On 22 January 2016, 489,990,000 consideration shares of HK$0.1
were issued by the Company to CISI Holdings.

Investments revaluation reserve

The investments revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the fair value changes arising from AFS financial assets

that have been recognised in other comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss when those AFS
financial assets are disposed of or are determined to be impaired.

COMMITMENTS
Commitments under operating lease

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Within one year 13,946,256 20,839,533
In the second to fifth year inclusive - 11,346,632

13,946,256 32,186,165
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32.

33.

COMMITMENTS (continued)

Commitments under operating lease (Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its office premises and director/staff apartments.
Leases and rentals are negotiated and fixed for periods of two to three years.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates (up to HK$1,500 per employee per month) specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions. Except for
voluntary contribution, no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income represent contributions paid or payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The contributions paid to the schemes by the Group are disclosed in note 10.

Employee Share Participation Scheme

On 25 April 2016, Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) adopted an ESPS (as defined in note 31(h)) to incentivise
eligible participants for their contributions to the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company issued and allotted a total of 277,029,703 ES Shares (as defined in note
30(h)) for a total consideration of HK$279,800,000 (being the total award price (the “Award Price”)) for award

of the ES Shares which has been irrevocably settled on 26 April 2016.

No expenses is recognised in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 as the
fair value of ES shares at grant date was approximate to the Award Price.
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TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course of business by which it transfers recognised financial assets to
third parties. In some cases where these transfers may give rise to full derecognition of the financial assets concerned. In
other cases where the Group has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred assets.

The Group transfers financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety primarily through the sale of debt
securities with a concurrent total return swap.

The Group sells debt securities that are subject to a concurrent total return swap during the year ended 31 December
2016. The Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the debt securities. Therefore, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred securities in its consolidated statement of financial position. The cash received is
recognised as a financial asset and a corresponding liability is recognised.

The following table sets out the carrying amounts of all financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their
entirety and associated liabilities.

31 December

2016
HK$
Carrying amount of assets (available-for-sale debt securities) 348,806,325
Carrying amount of associated liabilities (other borrowings) 177,577,860
Net position 171,228,465

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group
consists of bank borrowings and other borrowings as disclosed in notes 28 and 29, and equity attributable to owners of
the Company (comprising issued share capital and reserves less accumulated losses).

The directors of the Company review the capital structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through new share issues or bank
borrowings. For the purpose of expansion of the business and developing new business, the Group raised a total of
approximately HK$3,750 million by issuing shares to Pre-IPO investors, employees and through IPO during the year
ended 31 December 2016. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the years.

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated Subsidiaries”) are granted licenses by the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission (the “SFC") for the business they operate in. The Regulated Subsidiaries are subject to liquid capital
requirements under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). Management
of the Group closely monitors, on a daily basis, the Regulated Subsidiaries’ liquid capital level to ensure compliance
with the minimum liquid capital requirements under the SF(FR)R. The Regulated Subsidiaries has no non-compliance of
capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R throughout both years.
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,803,902,667 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 3,181,350,771 -
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 8,376,186,541 4,867,609,648
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 8,980,992,393 4,361,480,528

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include financial assets at FVTPL, AFS financial assets, accounts receivable,
loans receivable, other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank balances and cash, accounts payable, bank
borrowings, other borrowings, other payables and amounts due to related parties. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with those financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below.

The Group’s risk management objectives are to achieve a proper balance between risks and yield and minimise the
adverse impact of risks on the Group’s operating performance. Based on these risk management objectives, the Group's
basic risk management strategy is to identify and analyse the various risks the Group is exposed to, and to establish
an appropriate tolerance for risk management practice, so as to monitor, notify and respond to the risks regularly and
effectively and to control risks at an acceptable level.

The risks that the Group is exposed to in its daily operating activities mainly include market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group has established policies and
procedures accordingly to identify and analyse the risks. The Group has set up appropriate risk indicators, risk limits, risk
policies and internal control process.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

The management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the market risk of changes in interest rates and foreign currency risk.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate loans receivable and fixed-rate debt
securities classified as AFS financial assets and financial assets at FVTPL. The Group currently does not have fair value
hedging policy. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk mainly from balances with banks, secured
margin loans and bank borrowings carrying interest at prevailing market rates.

Management of the Group monitors the related interest rate exposure closely to ensure the interest rate risks are
maintained at an acceptable level. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and London Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s respective HKD and
USD denominated financial instruments.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for interest-bearing assets
and liabilities. The analysis is prepared assuming interest-bearing assets and liabilities outstanding at the end of
respective reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. When reporting to management of the Group on
the interest rate risk, a 50 basis points (“bps”) increase or decrease in the relevant interest rates will be adopted for
sensitivity analysis, assuming all other variables were held constant, which represents a reasonably possible change in
interest rates. Interest bearing bank deposit is not included in the sensitivity analysis for the decrease of interest rate as
the bank deposit rate is at a low level and management of the Group considers such downward adjustment is unlikely.
A positive number below indicates an increase in profit after taxation of the Group or vice versa.

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Profit after taxation for the year
Increase by 50 bps 12,311,000 5,560,000
Decrease by 50 bps 4,003,000 343,000
Other comprehensive income for the year
Increase by 50 bps (74,021,000) -
Decrease by 50 bps 74,021,000 -

In the management'’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the interest rate risk as at the year end and
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk
The Group undertake certain transactions denominated in currencies other than its functional currencies, hence they are
exposed to exchange rate fluctuation.

The major foreign currency exposure of the Group in HKD equivalent is presented below:

Liabilities Assets
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
United States Dollars (“USD") 3,623,587,754 558,491,255 7.688,753,373 563,529,859
Renminbi (“RMB") 71,986,264 110,755,350 91,035,423 125,218,827

Foreign currency sensitivity

The directors of the Company do not expect significant foreign exchange risk arising from USD denominated
monetary items in view of the HKD pegged system to the USD. The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% strengthening in RMB against HKD, translated at year-end date. 5% sensitivity rate represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. For a 5% weakening in RMB against HKD, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit after taxation for the year.

RMB impact

2016 2015

HK$ HK$
Increase in profit after taxation for the year 795,000 604,000

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to price changes arising from investments classified as financial assets at FVTPL and AFS financial
assets.

The Group has established a multi-level management system for its proprietary trading business. The Board has set up
the Investment Decision Committee for the purposes of formulating investment policies and guidelines, making major
investment decisions and setting authorisation limits on investment managers in investment activities. The risk control
team is responsible for monitoring the daily operations of its proprietary trading activities and to ensure compliance
with its trading policies.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Other price risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group’s exposures are closely monitored by other relevant internal control units, including Risk
Management Department, the Finance Department, the Compliance Department and the Internal Audit Department.
The Group's exposures are closely monitored by the Finance Department and senior management on a daily basis and
are measured on a “mark-to-market” basis. The Group's various proprietary trading activities are reported monthly to
senior management for review.

For sensitivity analysis purpose of listed debt securities, if the prices of debt securities had been 2% higher/lower, the
profit after tax for the year ended 31 December 2016 would increase/decrease by approximately HK$13,034,000,
investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by approximately HK$62,613,000. At 31 December 2015, the
Group did not hold any debt securities.

For unlisted debt securities, convertible bonds, fund-linked note and credit linked notes depend on the valuation of the
respective investments or underlying investments, it is assumed that the unit price of debt securities and convertible
bonds and the underlying assets of fund-linked note and credit linked notes increased/decreased by 5%, profit after
tax for the year would have an estimated HK$50,727,000 increase/decrease, investment revaluation reserve would have
an estimated HK$2,535,000 increase/decrease. At 31 December 2015, the Group did not hold any unlisted structured
products.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the price risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to

the Group.

The credit risk exposure consists of the AFS financial assets and financial assets at FVTPL, accounts receivable, loans
receivable, amounts due from related parties and bank balances.

Other than the debt securities listed on stock exchanges in the PRC and unlisted debt securities in the United States, the
Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical location is mainly in Hong Kong.
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is the carrying amount of respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the Group has monitoring procedures for ensuring that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual client and borrower at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties are with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

As described in more detail in note 22, the credit risk on accounts receivable is managed through daily monitoring of
the outstanding exposures from individual clients, margin values and realisable values of individual client’s securities.
Apart from the exposures to ten largest margin clients’ exposure represented an aggregate of 41% of the total
accounts receivable from margin clients at 31 December 2016 (2015: 33%), respectively, the directors of the Company
considers that the concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

The credit risk for account receivables from clearing houses and brokers is considered as not material taking into
account of good market reputations and high credit ratings of the counterparties.

The credit risk on loans receivable is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers to meet interest and
principal repayment obligations and by changing the lending limits where appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also
managed by obtaining collateral. Apart from the exposures to the concentration of credit risk from three independent
counterparties amounting to HK$58,900,000 in aggregate as at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$210,000,000), the
Group does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk on loans receivable.

The Group also invested in debt securities and other financial products which exposed to credit risk. The management
of the Group reviews on a regular basis the portfolio of the debt securities and other financial products to ensure that
the concentration risk is at an acceptable level. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the credit risk
relating to the debt securities and other financial products is closely monitored.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The following table details the aggregate investment grade of debt securities and other financial products investment
portfolio held by the Group, as rated by well-known rating agencies.

As at
31 December
2016
Portfolio by issuer rating
Available-for-sale financial assets
AAA to A- 25.6%
BBB+ to BBB- 49.8%
BB+ and below 19.5%
Non-rated (note) 5.1%
100.0%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
AAA to A- 11.4%
BBB+ to BBB- 55.8%
BB+ and below 13.6%
Non-rated (note) 19.2%
100.0%

Note: Non-rated financial assets mainly represent debts instruments and other financial products issued by large corporations
in the industries of construction and development, transportation, and trade and retail, which are creditworthy issuers

in the market.



124

CHINA INDUSTRIAL SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector and by geographic location. An analysis of concentrations of
credit risk from investment securities is shown below.

2016
Financial
Available- assets at fair
for-sale value through

Note financial assets profit or loss
HK$ HK$
Carrying amount 16, 17 3,181,350,771 1,803,902,667
Concentration by sector

Banks 1,166,644,666 188,914,742
Other financial institutions 1,138,927,975 893,926,103
Insurance 530,664,594 -
Corporate: 300,151,126 721,061,822
Real estate 121,457,221 496,254,075
Chemicals - 185,276,031
Transportation 116,461,913 16,288,004
Telecommunications 40,415,953 -
Metals & mining 21,816,039 -
Airlines - 23,243,712
Retail 44,962,410 -
3,181,350,771 1,803,902,667

Concentration by location
China 2,466,668,629 663,913,579
Europe 301,120,676 16,648,452
Hong Kong 226,144,699 768,416,858
Southeast Asia 157,399,337 35,627,318
Australia 30,017,430 181,889,945
North America - 137,406,515
3,181,350,771 1,803,902,667
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Concentration by location for investment securities is based on the country of domicile of the issuer of the security.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not hold any debt securities and other financial products.

Other than concentration of credit risk on bank balances, amounts due from clearing houses and brokers, top ten
margin clients’ exposure described above, loans receivable from three independent counterparties and debt securities
investment, the Group had no significant concentration of credit risk by any single debtor, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under normal
and stress circumstances. The directors of Company consider that the liquidity risk of the Group is remote because the
Group has sufficient assets to repay the liabilities when demanded.

A number of the Group's activities in Hong Kong are subject to various statutory liquidity requirements as prescribed by
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission in accordance with the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "HKSFO").

The Group has also put in place a monitoring system to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its
business commitments and to comply with relevant liquid capital requirements under the HKSFO.

The table below analyses the financial liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the “on demand and less than one month” time band. As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amounts of these bank borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$4,142,518,829 (2015: HK$1,624,068,466). The
maturity dates for other financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2016
Accounts payable
(excluding secured margin loans
payable to broker)
Accounts payable arising from
the business of proprietary trading
— secured margin loans
(including interest payable)
Bank borrowings
(including interest payable)
Other borrowings
(including interest payable)
Other payable
Amounts due to related parties

At 31 December 2015
Accounts payable
Bank borrowings

(including interest payable)
Other payable

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate

0.01%

1.72%
2.61%
2.96%

N/A
N/A

0.01%

1.97%
N/A

Repayable Total

on demand More than contractual
and less than 1 month to  undiscounted Carrying
one month 1 year cash flows amount
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
3,801,138,026 - 3,801,138,026 3,801,106,350
846,287,437 - 846,287,437 846,287,437
4,145,435,841 - 4,145,435,841 4,145,435,841
178,030,545 - 178,030,545 178,030,545
6,203,706 - 6,203,706 6,203,706
3,928,514 - 3,928,514 3,928,514
1,943,206,487 - 1,943,206,487 1,943,190,294
1,625,671,947 798,388,800 2,424,060,747  2,417,671,947

618,287

618,287

618,287

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, for those borrowings with repayment on demand clauses, the
directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. As the scheduled repayment dates of these borrowings are all less than one month from the end
of each reporting period, the maturity analysis without taking into account the repayment on demand clause would be
similar to the above table and no further analysis is presented.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2: Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured on
a recurring basis

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value on a recurring basis is estimated using
discounted cash flow method.

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value on a recurring basis
approximate their fair values as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair

value on a recurring basis

Some of the financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following tables give information about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined including their fair

value hierarchy, valuation technique(s) and key inputs used.

Fair value
as at
31 December
Financial assets 2016
HK$
1) Financial assets held for trading
Debt securities
— Traded on stock exchanges 704,633,584
— Unlisted 189,548,233
894,181,817
2) Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Convertible bonds
— Traded on stock exchange 75,821,882
— Unlisted 16,648,452
Unlisted fund-linked note 695,295,000
Unlisted credit-linked notes 121,955,516

909,720,850

Fair value
hierarchy

Level 1

Level 2

Level 1

Level 2

Level 2

Level 2

Valuation
technique(s)
and

key input(s)

Quoted price in
active markets

Quoted from market
makers

Quoted price in
active markets

Quoted from market
makers

Recent transaction
prices

Quoted price of
preference shares



36.

CHINA INDUSTRIAL SECURITIES INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL

GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Financial assets

3) Available-for-sale financial assets

Debt securities

— Traded on stock exchanges

— Unlisted

Fair value

as at
31 December Fair value
2016 hierarchy

HK$
3,130,652,950 Level 1
50,697,821 Level 2

3,181,350,771

Valuation
technique(s)
and

key input(s)

Quoted price in active
markets

Quoted from market
makers

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the year ended 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2015,

the Group did not hold any investments.

Derivative financial instruments

Interest rate derivatives
— interest rate futures

Total

Less: Settlement

Net position

As at 31 December 2016

Notional Fair value
amount Assets Liabilities
HK$ HK$ HK$
1,404,387,743 262,641 -
1,404,387,743 262,641 -
(262,641) -
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36.

37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Under the daily mark-to-market and settlement arrangement, any gains or losses of the Group’s position in treasury
futures traded through CISI Futures, were settled daily with the broker. Accordingly, the net position of the above
derivative contracts was nil as at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not enter into any derivative contracts.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangement and similar agreements

The disclosures set out in the table below include financial assets that:
o are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position; or

o are subject to enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar financial
instruments, irrespective of whether they are offset in the Group's consolidated statements of financial position.

As further disclosed in notes 17 and 34, the group transferred listed debt securities to a non-bank financial institution
and entered into total return swap contract whereby the Group receives cash flow arising from the transferred debt
securities and receives the debt securities upon maturity of the contract. The total return swap contract is subject to
enforceable master netting arrangement, and the Group does not intend either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited (“HKSCC") and respective agreements between the Group and brokers, the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off money obligations receivable and payable with HKSCC and respective brokers on the same settlement
date on a net basis. The Group intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the accounts receivable and payable with brokerage
clients that are due to be settled on the same date with reference to the settlement method set by the HKSCC and the
Group intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same date which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
brokers and brokerage clients that are not to be settled on the same date, financial collateral including cash and
securities received by the Group, deposits placed with HKSCC and brokers do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the
consolidated statements of financial position since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only enforceable
following an event of default.
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Financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangement and similar agreements (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016

Financial assets

Accounts receivable arising from
the business of dealing
in securities

Debt securities pledged as
collaterals for other borrowings
(as disclosed in Note 34)

Debt securities pledged as
collaterals for margin loans
from broker (note 25 and note)

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable arising from
the business of dealing
in securities

Accounts payable arising from the
business of proprietary trading -
secured margin loans
from broker

Other borrowings

Gross amount
of recognised

Gross amount
of recognised
financial
liabilities

set off in the
consolidated
statement of

Net amounts
of financial
assets
presented

in the
consolidated
statement of

Related amounts not
set off in the consolidated
statement of financial position

financial financial financial Financial Collateral
assets position position instruments received Net amount
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
4,008,736,742 (162,250,489)  3,846,486,253 (89,233,070) (3,438,681,861) 318,571,322
348,806,325 - 348,806,325 (177,577,860) - 171,228,465
1,355,444,382 - 1,355,444,382 (845,079,922) - 510,364,460
Gross amount Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial liabilities
assets presented
set off in the in the Related amounts not
Gross amount consolidated consolidated set off in the consolidated
of recognised statement of statement of  statement of financial position
financial financial financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
3,224,370,963 (162,250,489)  3,062,120,474 (89,233,070) (2,239,273)  2,970,648,131
845,079,922 - 845,079,922 (845,079,922) - -
177,577,860 - 177,577,860 (177,577,860) - -
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37. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangement and similar agreements (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015

Gross amount Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
set off in the in the Related amounts not
Gross amount consolidated consolidated set off in the consolidated
of recognised statement of statement of statement of financial position
financial financial financial Financial Collateral
assets position position instruments received Net amount
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial assets
Accounts receivable arising from
the business of dealing
in securities 2,733,264,516 (213,361,684)  2,519,902,832 (108,225,175)  (2,298,428,648) 113,249,009
Gross amount Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial liabilities
assets presented
set off in the in the Related amounts not
Gross amount consolidated consolidated set off in the consolidated
of recognised statement of statement of statement of financial position
financial financial financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable arising from
the business of dealing
in securities 1,743,700,535 (213,361,684)  1,530,338,851 (108,225,175) (12,406,003)  1,409,707,673

Note: For the debt securities pledged as collaterals by the Group which is eligible to set off the Group’s secured margin loans
from broker, debt securities with carrying value amounting to HK$547,357,855 and HK$808,086,527 are classified
as financial assets at FVTPL and AFS financial assets in the Group's consolidated statements of financial position
respectively.
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group has the following material non-cash transactions.

As disclosed in note (b) under the consolidated statements of changes in equity, during the period from 1 January 2016
to 26 September 2016 and the year ended 31 December 2015, the consultancy services provided by Industrial Securities
(Shenzhen) amounting to HK$3,158,443 and HK$7,630,462 for the period from 1 January 2016 to 26 September 2016
and the year ended 31 December 2015 respectively, is regarded as deemed capital contributed from Industrial Securities
(Hong Kong).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties.

(@) Compensation of key management personnel

Other than the directors’ emoluments disclosed in note 12(a), the remuneration of other members of key
management during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 was as follows:

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Short-term benefits 24,060,000 20,709,629

Post-employment benefits 126,000 102,000
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Right of trading of RMB denominated securities in the PRC

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the intermediate holding company maintained deposits amounting
to RMB2 million in a designated bank account in the PRC to enable ISRFIF's trading of RMB denominated
securities in the PRC by using the approved quota.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group invests in RMB denominated securities in
the PRC using the approved quota under the PRC RMB Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor program of the
intermediate holding company for consideration of HK$1 per annum.

Consultancy services from a fellow subsidiary

For the period from 1 January 2016 to 26 September 2016, the total costs incurred by Industrial Securities
(Shenzhen) for provision of the services mentioned above to the Group amounted to HK$3,158,443 (year ended
31 December 2015: HK$7,630,462) on the basis of actual costs incurred by Industrial Securities (Shenzhen),
which is regarded as deemed capital contributed from Industrial Securities (Hong Kong) as disclosed in note (b)
under the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

Pursuant to service agreement entered into between the Company and Industrial Securities (Shenzhen), dated
27 September 2016 (the “Service Agreement”), Industrial Securities (Shenzhen) agreed to provide consultancy
services to the Company, including the provision of consultancy service on economic information, and
assisting the Company in collecting and analysing information on macroeconomics, industry news and market
information in the PRC, at cost, plus a mark up of 6%. During the period from 27 September 2016 to 31
December 2016, the Company paid a service fee of HK$4,826,110 under the Service Agreement. Details of the
Service Agreement are set out in section headed “Connected Transactions” in the Prospectus.

Right of use of trademark
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group was granted by the intermediate holding

company a non-transferable and non-assignable license to use its registered trademarks for the Group’s business
and any related businesses for consideration of HK$1 per annum.
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The particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries and consolidated investment funds are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Directly owned

CISI Brokerage

CISI Futures

CISI Capital

CISI Asset Management

CISI Finance

CISI Investment

CISI Wealth Management

Indirectly owned

CISI Investment Limited

Place and
date of
incorporation

Hong Kong
20 July 2011

Hong Kong

18 January 2012

Hong Kong
16 August 2012

Hong Kong
31 October 2011

Hong Kong
28 October 2013

Hong Kong
29 May 2014

Hong Kong
21 April 2015

British Virgin Islands
11 May 2016

Place of
operation

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Issued and
fully paid up
share capital

HK$1,800,000,000

HK$50,000,000

HK$20,000,000

HK$20,000,000

HK$210,000

HK$20,000,000

HK$1,000,000

US$2,500,000

Equity attributable

to the Group
at 31 December

2016 2015
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 N/A

Principal activities

Securities dealing and broking
and securities margin
financing

Futures and options
contracts broking

Advising on corporate
finance services

Advising on securities and
asset management services
Money lending

Investment holding

Wealth management
services

Investment trading
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40.

41.

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place and Registered and Effective
date of Place of Class of paid up capital interest holding  Principal
Name of investment fund  incorporation operation share at 31 December at 31 December  activities
2016 2015 2016 2015
% %
Indirectly owned
CIS Investment Fund Cayman Islands Hong Kong  Participating N/A HK$1,000,000 N/A 100 Investment trading
Segregated Portfolio 17 June 2015 Management Us$100 Us$100 100 100

Company - CIS Dynamic
Growth Fund Segregated
Portfolio (“CISDF")
(note)

Note: CISI Asset Management, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, has been appointed as an investment manager and
holds all management shares of CISDF. The Group holds all issued participating shares of CISDF since its incorporation
up to 26 February 2016. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the fund is regarded as a consolidated
structured entity of the Company as CISI Asset Management is able to exercise control over its operation and has
significant variable financial interest since its incorporation up to 26 February 2016. Since 26 February 2016, the Group
determines that CISDF is an unconsolidated structured entity as the Group no longer has significant variable financial
interest after redemption of all participating shares.

INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, CISI Asset Management, serves as the investment manager of several
investment funds, which are considered to be structured entities within the definition of HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of
interests in other entities”. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the investment funds are regarded as
unconsolidated structured entities as the Group does not hold any participating shares in the investment funds which
is not able to exercise control over their operation and has no significant variable financial interest. Hence, they are not
consolidated in the consolidated financial statements.

CISI Asset Management receives an interest in these unconsolidated structured entities through the receipt of
management and performance fees. The unconsolidated structured entities invest in a range of asset classes. The
carrying values of the Group's interests in these unconsolidated structured entities as recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016 is HK$2,414,530 (2015: HK$1,142,267) (included in accounts
receivable) and the management fee and performance fee recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2016 is HK$3,376,693 (2015: HK$1,142,267).
The net asset value of total asset under management for these funds amounts to approximately HK$759 million as at
31 December 2016 (2015: HK$328 million).
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INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES (continued)

The unconsolidated structured entities have various investment objectives and policies and are subject to the terms
and conditions of their respective offering documentation. However, all unconsolidated structured entities invest their
capital, from third-party investors, in a portfolio of assets according to respective investment restrictions set out in the
offering documentation in order to provide a return to those investors from capital appreciation of those assets, income
from those assets, or both. Accordingly, the portfolio of assets held by these unconsolidated structured entities are
susceptible to market price risk and the performance of the investment manager.

Maximum exposure to loss

The Group’s maximum exposure to loss associated with its interest in these unconsolidated structured entities is limited
to the carrying amount mentioned as above.

Financial support

The Group has not provided financial support to any of its unconsolidated structured entities during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015, and has no contractual obligations or current intention of providing financial support in the
future.

Other information

There are no liquidity arrangements, guarantees or other commitments that may affect the fair value or risk of the
Group's interest in the unconsolidated structured entities.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Deposits, other receivables and prepayments

Current assets
Accounts receivable
Deposits, other receivables and prepayments
Amounts due from subsidiaries/related parties
Bank balances — general accounts and cash

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables
Amounts due to related parties
Tax payable
Bank borrowings

Net current assets (liabilities)

Non-current liabilities
Other liability
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Capital reserve

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
5,451,832 5,688,507
901,956 1,392,415
1,927,150,163 1,408,150,163
7,318,755 6,259,322
1,940,822,706 1,421,490,407
- 1,100,000
4,526,333 4,332,645
4,439,670,000 831,104,021
549,497,307 74,343,613
4,993,693,640 910,880,279
72,406,380 44,012,866
3,928,514 988,650
8,548,683 =
2,550,000,000 1,792,000,000
2,634,883,577 1,837,001,516
2,358,810,063 (926,121,237)
= 873,961
447,036 779,771
4,299,185,733 493,715,438
400,000,000 1,000
3,359,547,592 =
97,196,320 2,273,617
442,441,821 491,440,821
4,299,185,733 493,715,438
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserve

Issue of shares upon incorporation
of the Company

Effect of group reorganisation

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the period

At 31 December 2015
Issue of shares pursuant to
the Group Reorganisation
Issue of shares to CISI Holding and
Pre-IPO investors
Issue of shares under ESPS
Capitalisation issue of shares
Issue of shares through IPO upon listing
Transaction costs attributable to
issue of shares through IPO upon listing
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year

At 31 December 2016

Share Capital Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
= 491,440,821 = 491,440,821
- - 2,273,617 2,273,617
— 491,440,821 2,273,617 493,714,438
— (48,999,000) — (48,999,000)
1,928,118,807 — — 1,928,118,807
252,097,030 252,097,030
(11,415,842) — — (11,415,842)
1,230,000,000 — — 1,230,000,000
(39,252,403) — — (39,252,403)
— — 94,922,703 94,922,703

3,359,547,592

442,441,821

97,196,320

3,899,185,733
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RESULTS

REVENUE

Other income

Finance costs

Commission and fee expenses
Staff costs

Other operating expenses
Listing expenses

Other gains and losses

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (expressed in HKD)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Year ended 31 December

2014 2015 2016
HK$ HK$ HK$
120,001,758 364,324,168 507,300,113
4,365,712 3,865,371 7,419,660
(16,682,557) (45,843,172) (73,251,260)
(12,976,346) (79,996,504) (47,536,937)
(36,377,417) (100,009,268) (129,440,925)
(37,460,628) (85,253,840) (92,383,061)
- (1,598,329) (22,899,313)
2,248,537 (7,419,313) (15,831,828)
23,119,059 48,069,113 133,376,449
(4,347,723) 2,434,920 (32,256,895)
18,771,336 50,504,033 101,119,554
(18,443,580) 18,443,580 (38,104,605)
327,756 68,947,613 63,014,949
0.0399 0.0991 0.0420

As at 31 December
2014 2015 2016
HK$ HK$ HK$
2,137,432,645 4,916,439,425 13,398,147,405
(1,716,754,735) (4,419,183,440) (9,103,822,604)
420,677,910 497,255,985 4,294,324,801




S ik k] < £ 19 A PR 2 )

China Industrial Securities International Financial Group Limited



	Cover
	Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors
	Report of the Board of Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Back Cover



